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(Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) -
US Municipal Bond Fund)
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Director, Brian Burkholder
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P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

03 6775 1000

2023 31 133.53

12 11 30
2016 11 16 2017 11 30

1/240



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

2013 12
2016 10

2000
95497

2000

2013 12
2014

2014 11 24
2014 12 29
2016 10
2016 11 16

2/240



|

b

BT A

AR R AR o | P

EDINETOOOO
O000OO00oDO00oDO000oOo00oOo0OooOO(ELs389)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

3/240

bEz b (rdwy) I - SEEMEIFEEE N
(Zv ¥
RE - HENSEEE Ty R L
A el g
(773 FOFHEEL,
i ¥aE T
SHENFIT 2t
fEa3EH
B mE & it
= ki = o i
DLT 4+ A2 wRT AL |55
rf=i) Vidal TUTL e hERTF4 (A7)
R
(D7 FOGEDER - S5
EHIEOHT - BEL) (77 K OBHER
IR -
n= e 2 E TS O —
T EEEN BEEZN [RrsEnny
BIETITEZN
| wirmas | ARcBREERSE | —
FRE
PLF g A RS M S A EERT BREHTEH
PRFE (77 FOBRESOH Er T S
(77 RORGHREE | | Kb 2EEES - A AR
235) SE L ORIERS)
(77 FoBd - A5Eh
Rl TEEBRTES
B IOGE (TR
| Bt |
. B TR AL T
A (Tvy FOEEERERS Lo

EREI T - R ETE




EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000o0000000000dn(ELs389)

Oooooooooooobooooonoad

277k BANRETHRART WRNRE

B Rl R Tt A LA LA A D —

Lt . =T
BiAE R LT - Sa=2 e T TR
(SR SZ)
ceen) | RE-RBELHBRE | ma RENZTA -
FrF o TR AL

= | T | sson

Ao i
-5 -, e
DLFA 242 IR A

- == <IE
sEE | OATAVETE WE | oy | A
R <ORADD > AR A
®as SIMERDST v FEIY—2-
(CHE) e LN IN-Th-2—

—

w4 AL AR AR - FEAR — Za=30 0L - OF - 27 REHERLISZ) O LR ERRELTEMIC
B5FT.LIENST, JrvEORENE TR T BN AR S ET T IRES L EUET .

41240



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(Credit Suisse
Management
(Cayman) Limited)

Elian Trustee
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Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
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Neuberger Berrman Investment
Advisers LLC
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2018 11 111,925 14,945.35 98.23 13,117
2019 11 179,810 24,010.03 106.75 14,254
2020 11 226,624 30,261.10 110.69 14,780
2021 11 244,726 32,678.26 110.63 14,772
2022 11 168,454 22,493.66 90.95 12,145
2022 203,600 27,186.71 97.60 13,033
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2023 175,442 23,426.77 91.88 12,269
2023 188,199 25,130.21 93.77 12,521
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2023 31
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2022 11 30
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
USD USD
) s ; $161,869,074 21,614,377 $240,227,164 32,077,533
2.1 4,065,217 542,828 5,272,832 704,081
2.4 2,800,000 373,884 - .
2.10 3 474,223 63,323 426,567 56,959
13,505 1,803 2,077 277
169,222,010  22.596.216 245,928,640 32,833,851
2.8 2,902,286 387,542 518,698 69,262
2-10 3 7 7 bl b ] bl
8.2C 297,316 39,701 392,418 52,400
8.28 147,427 19,686 83,072 11,003
8.1C 33,981 4,537 103,841 13,866
8.18 33,601 4,499 4,991 666
8.1A 22.172 2,961 20,386 2,722
8.1E 19,333 2.582 18,324 2,447
8.2F 7.623 1,018 9,002 1,202
630 84 630 84
8.1D 599 80 400 53
3,465,058 462,689 1,151,762 153,795

$165,756,961 22,133,527 $244,776,878 32,685,057
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2022 11 30 1
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
USD UsD
®
2.11 $7,615,642 1,016,917  $8,623,965 1,151,558
2.11 37,137 4,959 394 53
(3.,923,896) (523,958) 2,274,243 303,680
2.11 7
2o 211 (39,950,000)  (5,334,524)  (5,140,394) (686,397)
.

2.6 165 22 58 8
(36,220,952)  (4,836,584) 5,758,266 768,901

8.2A
8.2¢ 1,392,643 185,960 1,795,028 239,690
8.1C 504,581 67,377 650,372 86,844
8.28 403,665 53,901 520,298 69,475
8.1A 121,099 16,170 156,089 20,843
8.18 85,792 11,456 74,965 10,010
8.1E 55,308 7,385 1,037 138
8.1D 22,582 3,015 35,694 4,766
21,889 2,923 21,852 2,918
8.2F 20,183 2,695 26,015 3,474
2,627,742 350, 882 3,281,350 438,159
(38,848,604)  (5,187,466) 2,476,916 330,743
$(38,848,694)  (5,187,466)  $2,476,916 330,743

) FVTPL
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2022 11 30
UsD
2020 11 30 $229,511,308 30,646,645
3 88,068,462 11,759,782
2.8 (72,457,618) (9,675,266)
2.7 (2,822,190) (376,847)
2,476,916 330,743
2021 11 30 $244,776,878 32,685,057
3 19,644,117 2,623,079
2.8 (57,366,190) (7,660,107)
2.7 (2,449,150) (327,035)
(38,848,694) (5.187,466)
2022 11 30 $165,756,961 22,133,527
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2022 11 30 1
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
UsD UsD
$(38,848,694)  (5,187,466)  $2,476,916 330,743
(13,815,641)  (1,844,803) (59,823,965)  (7,988,294)
48,300,000 6,449,499 37,000,000 4,940,610
(165) (22) (58) ©))
3,923,896 523,958  (2,274,243) (303, 680)
39,950,000 5,334,524 5,140,394 686,397
(2,800,000) (373,884) - -
(11,428) (1,526) (2,077) 77)
- - (5,200,000) (694,356)
) (70,292) (9,386) 48,068 6,419
36,627,676 4,890,894  (22,634,965)  (3,022,447)
19,596,461 2,616,715 96,145,308 12,838,283
(54,982,602)  (7,341,827) (72,209,567)  (9,642,143)
(2,449,150) (327,035)  (2,822,190) (376,847)
(37,835,291)  (5,052,146) 21,113,551 2,819,292
(1,207,615) (161,253)  (1,521,414) (203,154)
)1 5,272,832 704,081 6,794,246 907,236
$4,065,217 542,828  $5,272,832 704,081

2.1
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2022 11 30 1

2022 11 30 2021 11 30
usD UsD
$37,137 4,959 $394 53

$7,615,642 1,016,917 $8,623,965 1,151,558

@
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2022 11 30
1.
2013 12 2
11
2016 10 3
2016 11 16
2021 2014 1 22
2021
KY1-9005

One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman
Islands
2021 12 6 CsC 100%

2022 11

CSC Intertrust Group

DS
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2022 11 30 1
1 A
A A
$
SF
1933
1940
Baa3 BBB-
& Baa3 BBB-
Bal
BB+
2022 11 30 2021 11 30 87.5%

88.6%
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2022 11 30
A
c
A
c
c
2163 12 1
(i) 300
(i)
1
1 25
1
1
1

2023 5 4
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2022 11 30 1
2.
IFRS IFRS
4
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27 2012
IFRS 9 3

FVTPL
FVOCI IFRS 9

FVTPL
FVTPL

i) SPPI
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2022 11 30 1

) SPPI

iii)FVTPL

FVTPL

SPP1
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2022 11 30 1

ECL FVOCI
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2022 11 30 1
ECL
- FVTPL
- 12
2022 11 30
2021 12 1
2.1
3
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
2022 2021
$ 9,400 $ 22
4,055,817 5,272,810
$ 4,065,217  $ 5,272,832
2.2
A

FVTPL
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2022 11 30 1
2022 11 30 - 2022 11 30 -
$ 161,869,074 $ 196,606,700
2021 11 30 - 2021 11 30 -
$ 240,227,164 235,014,790
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
B
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2022 11 30 1

NAV

)] (i)
(i) (iv)
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2022 11 30 1
7 00
1 10,000
2.3
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
2.4
2022 11 30
2.5
2.6
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2022 11 30 1
B

2.7

()

(i) )

@ ®
1
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
2022 2021

A $ 2,449,150 $ 2,822,190
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2022 11 30 1

2.8

IAS 32

2022 11 30 2021
11 30
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2022 11 30 1

2.9

2.10

2.11 FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL

2.12
2063 12 2

2022 11 30 2021 11 30
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2022 11 30 1

IAS 12

2022 11 30 2021 11 30
2.13
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2022 11 30 1
3.
1
1
1 100
2 5
2022 11 30 1
1
A $ 165,756,961 1,822,411 $ 90.9548
2021 11 30 1
1
A $ 244,776,878 2,212,610 $ 110.6281
2022 11 30 2021 11 30 1

100%
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2022 11 30 1

%

1 2.00%
1 2 1.60%
2 3 1.20%
3 4 0.80%
4 5 0.40%
5
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2022 11 30 1
2022 11 30 2021 11 30 1
A $19,644,117 $(57,366,190)
A $38,068,462 $(72,457,618)
2022 11 30 2021 11 30 1
2021 11 30 2022 11 30
A 2,212,610 192,357 (582,556) 1,822,411
2020 11 30 2021 11 30

A 2,073,673 795,026 (656,089) 2,212,610
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2022 11 30 1

5.1
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2022 11 30 1

Q)

IMF

2022 11 30 2021 11 30
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2022 11 30 1
(i)

3
2022 11 30 2021 11 30 50

20,279 26,364
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2022 11 30 1
(i)
2022 11 30 2021 11 30 1%
1,618,691 2,402,272
1%
2022 11 30

11% 2021 11% 88% 2021 88%

2022 11 30 2021 11 30
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2022 11 30
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
2021 11 30
2022 11 30
%

Aaa 3.1%
Aal 8.0%
Aa2 27.4%
Aa3 18.4%
Al 21.6%
A2 9.6%
A3 5.2%
Baal 2.5%
Baa2 2.8%

98.6%

Moody*s Investor Service

94/240
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2022 11 30
2021 11 30
%
*
Aaa 5.0%
Aal 7.2%
Aa2 27.1%
Aa3 19.4%
AL 15.0%
A2 13.3%
A3 4.7%
Baal 2.0%
Baa2 2.8%
2.2%
98.7%
* Moody*s Investor Service
C
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2022 11 30 1
2022 11 30 1 1 3
$ 2,902,286 $ - $ 2,902,286
297,316 - 297,316
147,427 - 147,427
33,981 - 33,981
33,691 - 33,691
22,172 - 22,172
19,333 - 19,333
7,623 - 7,623
630 630
599 - 599
$ 3,465,058 $ - $ 3,465,058
2021 11 30 1 1 3
$ 518,698 $ - $ 518,698
392,418 - 392,418
103,841 - 103,841
83,072 - 83,072
20,386 - 20,386
18,324 - 18,324
9,002 - 9,002
4,991 - 4,991
630 - 630
400 - 400

$ 1,151,762 $ - $ 1,151,762

15%
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2022 11 30 1
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
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2022 11 30 1

5.2
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2022 11 30 1

2022 11 30 2021 11 30
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2022 11 30 1

2022 11 30 2021 11 30

2163 12 1
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2022 11 30 1

5.3
IFRS 13
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2022 11 30 1
3
2022 11 30
2022 11 30
1 2 3
$ -3 161,869,074 $ - 3 161,869,074
$ - $ 161,869,074 $ - 3 161,869,074
2021 11 30
2021 11 30
1 2 3
$ -3 240,227,164 $ - 3 240,227,164
$ - $ 240,227,164 $ - $ 240,227,164
2022 11 30 2021 11 30 1 2 3
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2022 11 30 1
2 2
NAV
2
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
(i) 2022 11 30 2021 11 30
2
5.4
2022 11 30 2021 11 30 25,823,285,335
185,086,621 30,799,123,950 271,286,215 2022 11 30
25,568,902,731
25,486,839,018 82,063,713 2021 11 30
30,674,985,773
30,680,748, 400 5,762,627
2022 11

30 2021 11 30
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2022 11 30 1
2
6.
100%
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
7.
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
$ (3,923,731) $ 2,274,301
(165) (58)
$ (3,923,896) $ 2,274,243
$ (39,950,000) $ (5,140,394)
$ (39,950,000) $ (5.,140,394)
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2022 11 30 1
8.
8.1

A

5 0.06% 5 0.05% 10
0.04%
3,750 2022 11 30 2021 11 30 1
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
B
2022 11 30 2021 11 30 2022
11 30 2021 11 30
C
0.25%
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
D
0.01% 1
10 2022 11 30 2021 11 30
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
E
2022 11 30 2021 11 30

2022 11 30 2021 11 30
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2022 11 30 1
8.2
A
10,000
2022 11 30 2021 11 30 2022 11 30
2021 11 30
B
0.20%
2022 11 30 2021 11 30 1
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
0.32%
C
0.12%
0.57%
2022 11 30 2021 11 30 2022 11

30 2021 11 30
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2022 11 30 1
(D
(i1)
Gii)
25
365
D
5,000
E
0.01%
2022 11 30 2021 11 30 1

2022 11 30 2021 11 30
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2022 11 30 1
9.
10%
2021 11 30 2021 11 30
10.
2023 3 19 UBS Group AG UBS
FINMA
2023 5 4 UBS
2023 5 4
2022 12 1 2023 5 4 27,785,706 6,605,355

946,180
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2022 12 30
( )

( \23,069,323,399) \ 23,826,312,317
( \3,718,066) 393,333
241,774,976

276,053,430
14,684
24,344,548,740

19,277,305

20,901,174
6,498,538
4,480,874
2,601,420

565,686
329,055
54,654,052

\ 24,289,894,688

\ 3,122,525,455
21,167,369,233
\ 24,289,894,688

442,311
18,923,192

7,060
1,119
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2022 12 30
( )

\ 972,028,874
972,028,874

89,469,624
13,979,639
8,345,770
5,038,825
3,810,235
2,795,945
365

123,440,403

C ) 848,588,471

C ) C )
C )
556,354,566
(724,711,480)
C ) (168,356,914)

/C )

(2,218,236,339)
246,621,756
C ) (1,971,614,583)

/( ) (2,139,971,497)

/( ) \ (1,291,383,026)
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2022 12 30
( )
C )
C ) \ 848,588,471
C ) (168,356,914)
C ) (1,971,614,583)
C ) (1,291,383,026)
(1,097,653,463)
/( ) (4,501,643,537)
/( ) (6,890,680,026)

31,180,574,714

\ 24,289,894, 688

387,525 23,011,797

41,958 -

15,171 821,050

(2,343) (4,909, 655)

54,786 (4,088,605)

442,311 18,923,192

\ 300,000,000  \ -
117,711,196 979,942,267
(20,000,000) (5,879,297,000)

/ \ 397,711,196  \ (4,899,354,733)
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2022 12 30
( )

\ 9,025 \ 1,203

n )y = 237 36

/( ) (1,902) (73)

/C ) (1,665) @37

(300) @7

\ 7,060 \ 1,119

e (18.70)%™* (3.24)%

\  3,122,525,455  \  21,167,369,233

0.44% 0.44%

/C ) 3.04% 3.05%

Fk

FokKk
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2022 12 30
(96.8%)
(9.8%)
(9-8%)
Advocate Health & Hospitals Corp.
usb 1,000,000 3.83% 8/15/2028 (2) \ 123,235,490
American University
1,000,000 3.12% 10/1/2027 () 120,374,559
Association of American Medical Colleges
1,000,000 3.02% 10/1/2035 109,051,818
Baptist Health Obligated Group
1,000,000 3.57% 12/1/2034 () 107,289,020
Baylor Scott & White Holdings
360,000 3.10% 11/15/2025 (2) 44,908,773
Bon Secours Mercy Health, Inc.
1,600,000 3.56 % 8/1/2027 () 195,169,784
Boston Medical Center Corp.
1,000,000 3.91% 7/1/2028 119,395,658
CommonSpirit Health
1,398,000 4.19% 10/1/2049 (@) 144,659,759
Jackson Laboratory
1,400,000 3.29% 7/1/2023 182,301,916
2,000,000 3.64% 7/1/2025 253,417,260
Kaiser Foundation Hospitals
2,900,000 3.15% 5/1/2027(2) 358,584,072
LBJ Infrastructure Group LLC
4,000,000 3.80% 12/31/2057 (2),(b) 337,872,376
Low Income Investment Fund
400,000 3.39% 7/1/2026(2) 49,833,024
Providence Health System
1,000,000 5.39% 10/1/2030 128,760,295
Providence St Joseph Health Obligated Group
1,000,000 2.53% 10/1/2029(2) 111,950,545
2,346,765,493) 2,386,804,349
2,346,765,493) 2,386,804,349
(87-0%)
(87.0%)
Alabama Federal Aid Highway Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
usp 500,000 2.65% 9/1/2037(2) 49,108,871
American Municipal Power, Inc., Revenue Bonds
35,000 7.20% 2/15/2029 5,030,656
370,000 7.73% 2/15/2033 55,499,918
Arizona Department of Transportation State Highway Fund Revenue, Revenue Bonds
730,000 3.17% 7/1/2038(2) 75,809,223
Bay Area Toll Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,500,000 2.32% 4/1/2033(2) 258,572,938
California Educational Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.11% 4/1/2028(2) 119,829,552
1,500,000 3.79% 4/1/2042(2) 154,689,040
California Infrastructure & Economic Development Bank, Revenue Bonds
1,155,000 2.54% 7/1/2031 124,124,887
California State Public Works Board, Revenue Bonds
475,000 7.80% 3/1/2035 73,134,980
California State University, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 2.80 % 11/1/2041(2) 187,466,857
California Statewide Communities Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 1.21% 2/1/2027 112,278,222
750,000 1.81% 2/1/2030 77,396,932
Central Puget Sound Regional Transit Authority, Revenue Bonds
305,000 5.49% 11/1/2039 41,968,345
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2022 12 30
(96-8%)
(87.0%)
(87.0%)
Chicago O"Hare International Airport, Revenue Bonds
usb 500,000 1.70% 1/1/2026 \ 60,159,084
Chicago Transit Authority Sales & Transfer Tax Receipts Revenue, Revenue Bonds
390,000 6.90% 12/1/2040 57,029,103
City of Amarillo TX Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenue, Revenue Bonds
300,000 3.40% 8/15/2024 38,796,499
550,000 3.65% 8/15/2026 69,715,211
505,000 3.85% 8/15/2028(3) 63,000,642
545,000 3.95% 8/15/2029(2) 67,643,470
250,000 4.05% 8/15/2031(2) 30,673,019
1,815,000 4.20% 8/15/2038(2) 213,786,420
City of Arlington TX Special Tax Revenue, Special Tax Bonds
450,000 3.45% 2/15/2024 58,505,716
300,000 3.60% 2/15/2025 38,507,680
220,000 3.67% 2/15/2026 27,905,159
310,000 3.77% 2/15/2027 38,938,265
City of Bridgeport CT, General Obligation Bonds
500,000 3.65% 9/15/2039(2) 50,408,692
City of Dearborn MI, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 4.33% 5/1/2032(2) 125,322,774
City of Downey CA, Revenue Bonds
450,000 1.75% 6/1/2029 47,703,558
550,000 1.85% 6/1/2030 56,753,803
825,000 1.95% 6/1/2031(2) 83,059,915
City of EI Cajon CA, Revenue Bonds
1,600,000 2.79% 4/1/2036(2) 157,350,315
City of Holland MI, General Obligation Bonds
900,000 4.14% 8/1/2032(2) 111,126,991
City of Houston TX Combined Utility System Revenue, Revenue Bonds
300,000 3.83% 5/15/2028 38,036,230
City of Jersey City NJ, General Obligation Bonds
350,000 3.76% 9/1/2033 40,897,369
City of Kansas City MO, Revenue Bonds
500,000 4.38% 10/1/2032(2) 59,099,165
City of Memphis TN, General Obligation Bonds
60,000 5.26% 7/1/2025 8,047,781
City of Monterey Park CA, Revenue Bonds
500,000 1.09% 6/1/2026 58,281,238
225,000 1.79% 6/1/2029 24,322,782
250,000 1.89% 6/1/2030 26,398,465
300,000 1.99% 6/1/2031 31,017,124
City of New Orleans LA, General Obligation Bonds
250,000 3.17% 12/1/2025 31,548,511
City of New York NY, General Obligation Bonds
900,000 3.60% 8/1/2028(2) 110,528,581
1,000,000 5.85% 6/1/2040 138,425,996
City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,500,000 2.56% 7/1/2040(2) 142,041,115
City of Rio Rancho NM, Revenue Bonds
530,000 1.69% 6/1/2029 57,377,571
375,000 1.93% 6/1/2031(2) 38,906,934
450,000 2.03% 6/1/2032(2) 45,793,346
City of Riverside CA, Revenue Bonds
925,000 3.00% 6/1/2025 116,747,000
1,000,000 3.86% 6/1/2045(2) 106,742,874
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City of Tempe AZ, Certificate Participation
uso 3,300,000 2.59% 7/1/2037(2) 309,280,304
City of Tucson AZ, Certificate Participation
175,000 6.30% 7/1/2025 23,463,501
City of Worcester MA, General Obligation Bonds
2,805,000 3.50% 1/15/2032(2) 332,415,076
City of Yuma AZ, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 1.95% 7/15/2029 106,039,133
Colorado Health Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.37% 11/1/2034 219,751,869
Colorado Housing & Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
150,000 0.86% 11/1/2024 18,560,584
Commonwealth Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
505,000 3.66% 6/1/2038 55,676,042
2,000,000 3.86% 6/1/2038 231,486,119
2,210,000 5.20% 6/1/2026 290,814,432
Connecticut State Health & Educational Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
500,000 3.36% 7/1/2028 59,596,515
Contra Costa County Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax Allocation
600,000 2.75% 8/1/2024 76,509,737
300,000 3.00% 8/1/2025 37,690,690
Cook County School District No 159 Matteson-Richton Park, General Obligation
Bonds
1,615,000 2.94% 12/1/2033(2) 174,650,702
County of Cook IL, General Obligation Bonds
525,000 6.23% 11/15/2034 74,585,244
230,000 6.31% 11/15/2031 32,504,978
955,000 6.36% 11/15/2033 136,880,634
County of Fresno CA, Revenue Bonds
1,200,000 0.00% 8/15/2025(c) 138,256,840
County of Jackson MI, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 3.53% 12/1/2028(2) 121,394,888
County of Miami-Dade FL Aviation Revenue, Revenue Bonds
2,100,000 3.14% 10/1/2027 255,607,629
2,000,000 3.18% 10/1/2028 239,247,007
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County of Miami-Dade FL Water & Sewer System Revenue, Revenue Bonds
UsD 1,245,000 2.50% 10/1/2027 \ 146,740,835
County of Tulare CA, Revenue Bonds
1,610,000 4.31% 6/1/2033(2) 193,473,420
Dallas Fort Worth International Airport, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 2.99% 11/1/2038 214,315,430
Florida Municipal Power Agency, Revenue Bonds
1,250,000 3.06% 10/1/2025 156,234,903
Foothill-Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency, Revenue Bonds
750,000 2.96% 1/15/2046(2) 64,010,316
1,750,000 3.92% 1/15/2053(2) 165,750,259
Golden State Tobacco Securitization Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.53% 6/1/2028 112,549,866
Grand Parkway Transportation Corp., Revenue Bonds
700,000 3.01% 10/1/2039(2) 70,399,583
Idaho Energy Resources Authority, Revenue Bonds
580,000 2.45% 9/1/2024 74,169,880
Indiana Bond Bank, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.11% 8/1/2028(2) 120,790,622
JobsOhio Beverage System, Revenue Bonds
2,075,000 2.83% 1/1/2038 213,880,562
2,975,000 3.99% 1/1/2029 380,521,105
Kansas Development Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
100,000 3.64% 4/15/2024 13,008,427
40,000 4.3% 4/15/2030 5,027,541
165,000 4.73% 4/15/2037 21,073,899
Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 5.08% 8/15/2048 117,374,849
Kentucky Higher Education Student Loan Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,500,000 3.76% 6/1/2024 194,198,480
Kentucky Housing Corp., Revenue Bonds
485,000 3.21% 1/1/2025 61,557,133
340,000 3.31% 7/1/2025 42,989,954
Kentucky State Property & Building Commission, Revenue Bonds
547,000 6.16% 8/1/2023 72,792,823
250,000 6.57% 8/1/2029 34,505,372
La Quinta Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax Allocation
1,230,000 3.77% 9/1/2028(2) 150,564,102
605,000 4.53% 9/1/2039(2) 70,453,595
Louisiana Local Government Environmental Facilities & Community Development
Auth, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.39% 9/1/2034(2) 113,453,203
Massachusetts Development Finance Agency, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 4.50% 7/1/2033(2) 240,562,824
Massachusetts Educational Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
500,000 3.51% 7/1/2029 58,720,104
350,000 3.70% 7/1/2023 45,915,353
1,500,000 4.04% 7/1/2026 190,360,702
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Metropolitan Government Nashville & Davidson County Sports Authority, Revenue
Bonds
Usb 1,000,000 3.02% 8/1/2040(2) \ 97,153,001
Metropolitan St Louis Sewer District, Revenue Bonds
750,000 3.16% 5/1/2038(2) 80,070,188
Metropolitan Transportation Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,590,000 6.73% 11/15/2030 352,534,512
Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority Dulles Toll Road Revenue, Revenue
Bonds
500,000 8.00% 10/1/2047 84,195,688
Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago, General Obligation
Bonds
410,000 5.72% 12/1/2038 57,133,665
Michigan Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
3,500,000 2.67% 9/1/2049(2) , (d) 425,525,564
Michigan State Building Authority, Revenue Bonds
4,000,000 2.71% 10/15/2040(2) 384,615,054
Minneapolis-St Paul Metropolitan Airports Commission, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.90% 1/1/2030(2) 243,823,316
Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia, Revenue Bonds
50,000 6.66% 4/1/2057 7,121,531
Muskegon County Building Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.86% 11/1/2032(2) 119,057,788
Nebraska Public Power District, Revenue Bond
510,000 2.49% 1/1/2027 60,895,319
250,000 3.05% 1/1/2028 29,866,159
New Hampshire Business Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 4.02% 9/1/2055(2) 97,491,428
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
245,000 2.93% 1/1/2023 32,322,850
20,000 2.97% 7/1/2024 2,530,004
170,000 3.24% 1/1/2024 21,869,477
New Jersey Economic Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,425,000 0.00% 2/15/2025(¢) 168,814,373
750,000 3.47% 6/15/2027 92,245,994
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
3,500,000 3.84% 9/1/2036(2) 387,765,364
New Jersey Higher Education Student Assistance Authority, Revenue Bonds
240,000 3.25% 12/1/2030(2) 30,119,999
New Jersey Institute of Technology, Revenue Bonds
500,000 4.18% 7/1/2037(2) 57,764,159
New Jersey Transportation Trust Fund Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 4.08% 6/15/2039 218,225,545
New Jersey Turnpike Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.73% 1/1/2036 112,088,256
1,000,000 7.41% 1/1/2040 163,544,848
New York City Housing Development Corp., Revenue Bonds
2,910,000 2.10% 5/1/2031(2) 300,318,334
400,000 3.23% 2/1/2027(2) 49,033,093

117/240



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 12 30
(96.8%)
(87.0%)
(87.0%)
usD 400,000 3.28% 8/1/2027(2) \ 48,827,742
300,000 3.33% 2/1/2028(2) 36,137,325
580,000 3.38% 8/1/2028(2) 69,524,264
New York City Industrial Development Agency, Revenue Bonds
1,250,000 2.34% 1/1/2035 115,870,640
New York City Transitional Finance Authority Future Tax Secured Revenue,
Revenue Bonds
2,700,000 1.71% 11/1/2028 293,510,490
1,050,000 3.04% 8/1/2027 126,339,535
New York State Dormitory Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 2.22% 7/1/2035 201,732,131
300,000 3.27% 7/1/2026 36,369,776
New York State Urban Development Corp., Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.37% 3/15/2030(2) 236,314,731
North Carolina Turnpike Authority, Revenue Bonds
75,000 5.32% 1/1/2031 10,034,550
North Hudson Sewerage Authority, Revenue Bonds
515,000 3.26% 6/1/2032(2) 58,790,969
Ohio Turnpike & Infrastructure Commission, Revenue Bonds
1,500,000 3.22% 2/15/2048(2) 141,066,482
Oregon School Boards Association, General Obligation Bonds
200,000 5.68% 6/30/2028 27,026,589
Palmdale Elementary School District, Special Tax Bonds
650,000 3.25% 8/1/2027 78,947,153
1,080,000 3.50% 8/1/2028 130,455,967
Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.20% 11/15/2027 119,453,208
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, Revenue Bonds
250,000 2.93% 12/1/2025 31,469,540
1,000,000 3.09% 12/1/2038(2) 99,949,851
Philadelphia Authority for Industrial Development, Revenue Bonds
190,000 1.65% 11/1/2024 24,263,555
320,000 6.35% 4/15/2028 43,803,771
Port Authority of New York & New Jersey, Revenue Bonds
1,500,000 4.43% 10/15/2034(2) 183,708,382
Port of Seattle WA, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.15% 8/1/2031 104,460,274
750,000 2.84% 5/1/2024 96,597,339
Regents of the University of California Medical Center Pooled Revenue, Revenue
Bonds
605,000 6.46% 5/15/2029 83,966,899
Regional Transportation District, Certificate Participation
225,000 7.67% 6/1/2040 35,249,472
Rhode Island Housing & Mortgage Finance Corp., Revenue Bonds
125,000 1.99% 10/1/2028 14,157,869
Rhode Island Turnpike & Bridge Authority, Revenue Bonds
635,000 3.16% 12/1/2033(2) 67,699,684
1,375,000 3.46% 12/1/2039(2) 139,686,257
Riverside County Infrastructure Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
250,000 3.19% 11/1/2041() 24,034,042
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Sales Tax Securitization Corp., Revenue Bonds
UsD 1,000,000 2.98% 1/1/2025 \ 126,830,892
2,000,000 3.59% 1/1/2043 212,764,434
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,100,000 3.10% 7/1/2043(2) 101,368,851
San Diego County Regional Transportation Commission, Revenue Bonds
1,120,000 3.20% 4/1/2039(2) 116,849,740
San Jose Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax Allocation
775,000 3.38% 8/1/2034(2) 89,576,500
South Carolina Public Service Authority, Revenue Bonds
295,000 2.39% 12/1/2023 38,155,161
1,000,000 6.45% 1/1/2050 143,034,838
South Carolina Student Loan Corp., Revenue Bonds
450,000 2.21% 12/1/2023 57,600,257
South Central Connecticut Regional Water Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,800,000 3.04% 8/1/2033(2) 306,264,028
St Tammany Parish Sales Tax District No 3, Revenue Bonds
815,000 1.47% 6/1/2027 93,612,900
1,000,000 1.67% 6/1/2028 112,779,054
Stanton Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax Allocation
800,000 3.13% 12/1/2024 102,024,129
State Board of Administration Finance Corp., Revenue Bonds
2,500,000 2.15% 7/1/2030 270,064,800
State of California, General Obligation Bonds
2,250,000 7.50% 4/1/2034 358,604,679
2,750,000 7.55% 4/1/2039 454,101,477
1,000,000 7.60% 11/1/2040 169,023,201
State of Illinois, General Obligation Bonds
3,655,000 5.10% 6/1/2033 462,790,081
State of Wisconsin, Revenue Bonds
4,255,000 3.95% 5/1/2036(2) 504,364,019
Texas A&M University, Revenue Bonds
500,000 2.26% 5/15/2025 62,431,954
Texas Private Activity Bond Surface Transportation Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.92% 12/31/2049 99,905,787
Tulsa Airports Improvement Trust, Revenue Bonds
325,000 3.11% 6/1/2024 41,898,440
500,000 3.45% 6/1/2026 62,805,666
University of California, Revenue Bonds
500,000 1.32% 5/15/2027(3) 56,891,343
University of Nebraska Facilities Corp., Revenue Bonds
200,000 2.37% 10/1/2029 22,871,657
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University of North Texas System, Revenue Bonds
usb 1,000,000 3.36% 4/15/2027 \ 123,736,514
University of Virginia, Revenue Bonds
400,000 6.20% 9/1/2039 59,671,453
Utah Housing Corp., Revenue Bonds
220,000 3.38% 1/1/2039(2) 27,592,265
Vermont Student Assistance Corp., Revenue Bonds
30,000 3.50% 6/15/2029(2) 3,798,536
Virginia Housing Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,500,000 3.33% 4/1/2040(2) 156,239,567
Virginia Resources Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.75% 11/1/2034(2) 106,371,716
West Contra Costa Unified School District, General
Obligation Bonds
100,000 3.54% 8/1/2034(2) 11,142,710
West Covina Public Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
250,000 2.98% 8/1/2029 28,401,696
1,000,000 3.74% 8/1/2038(2) 104,119,446
( \20,411,627,610) 21,128,577,672
( \20,411,627,610) 21,128,577,672
( \22,758,393,103) 23,515,382,021
(1-3%)
(1.3%)
(0.0%)*
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Ltd.
JPY 1,400,007 (0.33)% 01/04/2023 1,400,007
( \1,400,007) 1,400,007
(1.3%)
China Construction Bank
usb 2,346,171 3.59% 01/03/2023 309,530,289
( \309,530,289) 309,530,289
( \310,930,296) 310,930,296
(¢ \310,930,296) 310,930,296
( \23,069, 323,399) 98.1% \ 23,826,312,317
1.9% 463,582,371
100.0% \ 24,289,894,688
0.05
@
(b) 144 A 1933 144 A
©
@
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0.2% \ 49,108,871

2.7% 656,633,276

19.5% 4,734,637,140

1.1% 273,561,925

1.7% 416,269,235

0.4% 84,195,688

4_4% 1,067,895,174

0.0% 7,121,531

0.3% 74,169,880

5.7% 1,395,328,817

0.5% 120,790,622

0.2% 39,109,867

2.2% 523,418,611

1.4% 351,393, 668

3.6 867,974,059

5.3% 1,287,043,059

1.0% 243,823,316

0.6% 139,169,353

0.5% 113,633,135

0.6% 154,213,759

5.5% 1,330,256,876

0.6% 142,077,851

9.5k 2,299,175,532

0.0% 10,034,550

3.3% 795,998,723

0.4% 104,704,106

0.1% 27,026,589

3.7% 896,916,518

0.9% 221,543,810

1.0% 238,790,256

0.4% 105,200,782

5.2% 1,256,297,579

0.1% 27,592,265

0.0% 3,798,536

1.3% 322,282,736

1.0% 243,025,958

2.1% 504,364,019

87.0% \_21,128,577,672

2022 12 30 ( 0.9%)
/

USD GS 223,239 01/18/2023  JPY  (31,969,531) \ ~\  (2,576,694) \ (2,576,604)
JPY GS 29,844,612  01/18/2023  USD (206,397) 2,669,179 - 2,669,179
JPY RBC 16,656,860  01/18/2023  USD (123,920) 340,859 - 340,859
USD RBC 234,694  01/18/2023 JPY  (32,178,818) - (1,277,704) (1,277,704)
USD RBC 264,445  01/18/2023 JPY  (35,143,775) - (325,539) (325,539)
JPY SSB 14,394,000  01/18/2023  USD (100, 669) 1,139,388 - 1,139,388
JPY SsB 15,771,608  01/18/2023  USD (116,084) 487,279 - 487,279
JPY SSB 25,616,904  01/18/2023  USD (188,629) 781,015 - 781,015
JPY SsB 36,200,655  01/18/2023  USD (258,102) 2,217,527 - 2,217,527
JPY SsB 22,506,688  01/18/2023  USD (161,598) 1,229,758 - 1,229,758
JPY SsB 48,956,226  01/18/2023  USD (356, 268) 2,048,013 - 2,048,013
JPY ssB 2,850,419,630  01/18/2023 USD  (19,935,268) 225,631,165 - 225,631,165
USD SSB 337,045  01/18/2023 JPY  (44,558,087) - (62,331) (62,331)
) SsB 200,024  01/18/2023 JPY  (27,721,015) - (1,384,760) (1,384,760)
USD SSB 231,679 01/18/2023 JPY  (34,338,877) - (3,834,747) (3,834,747)
USD SsB 154,080  01/18/2023 JPY  (22,366,900) - (2,079,893) (2,079,893)
USD ssB 113,772 01/18/2023 JPY  (15,816,395) - (836,546) (836,546)
JPY WSTP 300,000,000  01/18/2023 USD  (2,265,066) 1,768,858 - 1,768,858
JPY WSTP 31,749,663  01/18/2023  USD (237,079) 534,525 - 534,525
JPY WSTP 15,328,292  01/18/2023  USD (111,070) 704,262 - 704,262
JPY WSTP 18,585,467  01/18/2023  USD (134,334) 898,308 - 898,308
JPY WSTP 14,381,769  01/18/2023  USD (99,167) 1,324,840 - 1,324,840
USD WSTP 121,716 01/18/2023 JPY  (17,549,749) - (1,523,927) (1,523,927)
USD WSTP 153,568  01/18/2023 JPY  (22,320,761) - (2,101,152) (2,101,152)
USD WSTP 128,137  01/18/2023  JPY  (18,806,802) - (1,935,600) (1,935,600)
USD WsTP 109,395  01/18/2023  JPY  (15,741,901) - (1,338,412) (1,338,412)

\ 241,774,976\ (19,277,305) \ 222,497,671
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*
GS \ 2,669,179 \  (2,576,694) \ - \ - \ 92,485
RBC 340,859 (340,859) - - -
SSB 233,534,145 (8,198,277) - - 225,335,868
WsTP 5,230,793 (5,230,793) - - -
\ 241,774,976 \  (16,346,623) \ - \ _ \ 225,428,353
*
GS \ 2,576,694 \ (2,576,694) \ - \ - \ -
RBC 1,603,243 (340,859) - - 1,262,384
SSB 8,198,277 (8,198,277) - - -
WsTP 6,899,001 (5,230,793) - - 1,668,298
\ 19,277,305 \  (16,346,623) \ - \ - \ 2,930,682

* /( )

GS

JPY

RBC

SSB

usp

WsTP
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US Municipal Bond Fund
Statement of Financial Position
November 30, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Assets November 30, 2022 November 30, 2021
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 5) $ 161,869,074 $ 240,227,164
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2.1) 4,065,217 5,272,832
Receivables for:

Securities sold (Note 2.4) 2,800,000 -

Units issued (Note 2.10, 3) 474,223 426,567
Other assets 13,505 2,077
Total assets 169,222,019 245,928,640

Liabilities
Payables for:

Units repurchased (Note 2.8, 2.10, 3) 2,902,286 518,698
Fee Agent fees (Note 8.2C) 297,316 392,418
Investment management fees (Note 8.2B) 147,427 83,072
Distribution fees (Note 8.1C) 33,981 103,841
Custody fees (Note 8.1B) 33,691 4,991
Administrator fees (Note 8.1A) 22,172 20,386
Professional fees (Note 8.1F) 19,333 18,324
Agent Member Company fees (Note 8.2E) 7,623 9,002
Registration fees 630 630
Transfer Agent fees (Note 8.1D) 599 400
Liabilities (excluding equity) $ 3,465,058 $ 1,151,762
Equity (being net assets attributable to the holder of units) $ 165,756,961 $ 244,776,878

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Income November 30, 2022 November 30, 2021
Net income/(loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL(D
Dividend income (Note 2.11) $ 7,615,642 $ 8,623,965
Interest income (Note 2.11) 37,137 394
Net realized (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (Note 2.11, 7) (3,923,896) 2,274,243
Net change in unrealized (depreciation) on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 2.11, 7) (39,950,000) (5,140,394)
Net realized gain on foreign currency transactions (Note 2.6) 165 58
Total (loss)/income (36,220,952) 5,758,266
Expenses
Fee Agent fees (Note 8.2A, 8.2C) 1,392,643 1,795,028
Distribution fees (Note 8.1C) 504,581 650,372
Investment management fees (Note 8.2B) 403,665 520,298
Administrator fees (Note 8.1A) 121,099 156,089
Custody fees (Note 8.1B) 85,792 74,965
Professional fees (Note 8.1F) 55,308 1,037
Transfer Agent fees (Note 8.1D) 22,582 35,694
Printing fees 21,889 21,852
Agent Member Company fees (Note 8.2E) 20,183 26,015
Total expenses 2,627,742 3,281,350
Operating (loss)/profit (38,848,694) 2,476,916

Total comprehensive (loss)/income (being (decrease)/increase in net
assets attributable to the holder of units from operations) $ (38,848,694) $ 2,476,916

(O This relates to net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
(““FVTPL”?) including realized and unrealized gains/(losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss, dividend income and interest income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

124/240



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

US Municipal Bond Fund

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

At November 30, 2020 $ 229,511,308
Issue of units (Note 3) 88,068,462
Repurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (72,457,618)
Distributions (Note 2.7) (2,822,190)
Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets attributable

to the holder of units from operations) 2,476,916
At November 30, 2021 $ 244,776,878
Issue of units (Note 3) 19,644,117
Repurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (57,366,190)
Distributions (Note 2.7) (2,449,150)
Total comprehensive (loss) (being (decrease) in net assets

attributable to the holder of units from operations) (38,848,694)
At November 30, 2022 $ 165,756,961

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US Municipal Bond Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended November 30, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:

November 30, 2022

November 30, 2021

Total comprehensive (loss)/income (being (decrease)/increase in net

assets attributable to the holder of units from operations) $ (38,848,694) $ 2,476,916
Adjustments to reconcile total comprehensive (loss)/income (being
(decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to the holder of
units from operations) to cash provided by/(used in) operating
activities:
Purchases of investment in the Selected Fund (13,815,641) (59,823,965)
Proceeds from disposition of investment in the Selected Fund 48,300,000 37,000,000
Net (payments) from settlement of forward contracts (165) (58)
Net realized loss/(gain) on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss 3,923,896 (2,274,243)
Net change in unrealized depreciation on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 39,950,000 5,140,394
(Increase) in receivables for securities sold (2,800,000) -
(Increase) in other assets (11,428) (2,077)
(Decrease) in payables for purchase of investment in the Selected
Fund - (5,200,000)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables() (70,292) 48,068
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 36,627,676 (22,634,965)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from units issued, net of change in receivables for units
issued 19,596,461 96,145,308
Repurchases of units, net of change in payables for units
repurchased (54,982,602) (72,209,567)
Distributions paid to the holder of units, net of change in payables
for distributions to the holder of units (2,449,150) (2,822,190)
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (37,835,291) 21,113,551
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,207,615) (1,521,414)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (Note 2.1) 5,272,832 6,794,246
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 2.1) $ 4,065,217 $ 5,272,832
Supplementary information on cash flows from operating activities
Interest received $ 37,137 $ 394
Dividends received $ 7,615,642 $ 8,623,965

(1) Other payables comprise of fee agent fees, distribution fees, investment management fees, administrator fees,

custody fees, transfer agent fees, agent member company fees, registration fees and professional fees as

disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. ORGANIZATION

US Municipal Bond Fund (the““Series Trust””) is a Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust
(Cayman) 111 (the““Trust””), an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed
dated December 2, 2013 under Cayman Islands law. The Series Trust was established pursuant to a
Supplemental Trust Deed dated October 3, 2016 and executed by Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the
““Trustee””), a trust company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. The manager of
the Series Trust is Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the ““Manager””). The Series Trust
commenced operations on November 16, 2016.

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trusts Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands
and registered under the Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands on January 22,
2014.

The principal office for the Trustee (and therefore the Series Trust) is One Nexus Way, Camana
Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands.

On December 6, 2021, Corporation Service Company (““CSC”>”) announced that a conditional agreement
had been reached on a recommended public offer for all issued and outstanding ordinary shares of
which the Trustee is a wholly owned subsidiary. In November 2022, CSC closed on its acquisition

of Intertrust Group.

The Administrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Harriman &
Co. (the““Administrator””,““Custodian””and““Transfer Agent””).

Credit Suisse International acts as the Fee Agent (the““Fee Agent””).

Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the““Agent Member
Company~?).

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is Sumitomo Mitsui DS Asset Management Company Limited
(formerly Sumitomo Mitsui Asset Management Company Limited) (the““lInvestment Manager<<).

The Manager has authorized Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation to act as the Distributor (the
““Distributor®”) of the units in Japan.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

One class of units in the Series Trust is currently available for issue: Class A Units (the
““Class A Units””). The Series Trust and the Class A Units are denominated in U. S. Dollars
(“USD,’Or“$’,)_

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to seek current income and capital appreciation
by investing indirectly in United States municipal securities (the "Municipal Bonds™). The Series
Trust seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing substantially all of the assets of
the Series Trust into the USD class of units of Municipal Core Fund (the "Selected Fund™).

The Selected Fund is a series trust of Income Investment Trust, a Cayman Islands umbrella unit
trust (the "SF Trust™). The Selected Fund is registered as a Mutual Fund under the Mutual Funds
Act (as amended) of the Cayman Islands and the SF Trust has obtained a tax exemption certificate
from the Cayman Islands Government. Neither the units of the SF Trust, nor the Selected Fund have
been or will be registered under United States Securities Act 1933 and the Selected Fund has not
been and will not be registered under the United States Company Act of 1940. The investment
objective of the Selected Fund is to seek current income and capital appreciation by investing
principally in United States municipal securities.

In order to pursue its investment objective, Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC (the
““Investment Manager of the Selected Fund””) utilizes a multi-disciplinary combination of deep
fundamental bottom-up analysis and macro investment principles to invest in bonds rated Baa3/BBB
- or higher and issued by municipalities domiciled in the United States. The Selected Fund
intends to hold high-rated securities (the highest rating has to be Baa3/BBB- or higher with
reference to Moody*"s, Standard & Poor®s and Fitch). In its discretion, the Investment Manager of
the Selected Fund sells securities whose credit rating fall to Bal/BB+ or below, depending on
market condition.

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust shall have day-to-day investment decision-making and
ongoing monitoring responsibility over the portion of the Series Trust"s portfolio comprising the
Selected Fund and USD cash, money market securities and forward contracts (the "Subadvised
Portfolio™). The Subadvised Portfolio may generate a certain amount of income each month. Such
income is distributed to the unitholder on each distribution date.

At November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, the Series Trust held 87.5% and 88.6%, respectively,
of the Selected Fund®s net assets.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Currently the Selected Fund has two Classes - Class A JPY Hedged Class and Class C USD Unhedged
Class; of units being offered to investors which have been established for certain Japanese
Investment Trusts. All Classes are subscribed to in Japanese Yen of US Dollars. Class A seeks to
be hedged back to Japanese Yen and Class C is not hedged against USD denominated assets. The
Series Trust invests into the Selected Fund by purchasing the Selected Fund®s redeemable
participating shares in the Class C USD Unhedged Class. The Selected Fund allows repurchases of
these shares on any business day.

Movements in the fair value of the Selected Fund"s portfolio and corresponding movements in the
fair value of the Selected Fund may expose the Series Trust to a loss.

Final Repurchase Day

The Series Trust will continue until the earlier of December 1, 2163 and the earliest practicable
repurchase day following the occurrence of a compulsory repurchase event (the ““Final Repurchase
Day””), unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

The units are compulsorily repurchased upon the first to occur of any of the following:

(1) the net asset value on any valuation day is $3,000,000 or less and on that valuation day or
thereafter the Manager determines that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased
by giving notice to all unitholders; or

(i1) the Trustee and the Manager agreeing that all of the units should be compulsorily
repurchased, (each a "Compulsory Repurchase Event'™).

Upon the occurrence of a Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit is repurchased on the Final
Repurchase Day at the final repurchase price per unit. The final repurchase price per unit is
calculated by the Administrator in its sole discretion in accordance with the Offering Memorandum
and the Appendix 25 as the Net Asset Value per unit on the Final Repurchase Day (or if such day
is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day). Repurchase Day is each
dealing day which is also a day on which no Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or such
other day or days as the Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust.
Unitholder is able to receive an amount in respect of each unit repurchased on any Repurchase Day
prior to the Final Repurchase Day equal to the Net Asset Value per unit as at the relevant
Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding
valuation day) (the““Repurchase Price””). There is no repurchase fee applied to the Repurchase
Price in respect of each unit being repurchased.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on May 4, 2023.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless
otherwise stated. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and requires the Trustee and the
Manager to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust"s accounting
policies. Areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)
(2012) (the Amendments). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an
investment entity.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at
amortized cost, fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally
based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortized
cost or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

i) It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and,

ii) Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely represent
payments of principal and interest (SPPI).
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

i) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding;

ii) It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual
cash flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell;

iii)At initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FVTPL when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Series Trust considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- leverage features;
- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Series Trust®s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features); and

- Tfeatures that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of

interest rates).
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

- Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, receivables for
units issued and other assets. These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash
flow.

- Other business model: this includes financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Investment in the Selected Fund). These financial assets are managed and their performance
is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held, the Series Trust considers all of the relevant information about how the business is
managed, including:

- the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This
includes whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust's
management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust"s
continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost include payables for units repurchased, fee agent

fees, investment management fees, distribution fees, professional fees, administrator fees, agent
member company fees, custody fees, transfer agent fees and registration fees.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Impairment of financial assets

The““expected credit loss””(ECL) model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and
debt investment at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.

Based on the Series Trust"s assessment, the ECL model does not have a material impact on the
Series Trust®"s financial assets because:

- The majority of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impairment requirements
do not apply to such instruments.

- The financial assets at amortized cost are short-term (i.e. no longer than 12 months), of
high credit quality and/or highly collateralized. Accordingly, the ECLs on such assets are
expected to be small.

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the year ended
November 30, 2022:

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after December 1, 2021 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not
early applied these new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements as they do
not have a material effect on the Series Trust"s financial statements.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and short-term deposits with original maturity
of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

At November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, the Series Trust held the following balances as cash
and cash equivalents:

2022 2021
Cash $ 9,400 $ 22
Time deposit 4,055,817 5,272,810
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position $ 4,065,217 $ 5,272,832
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

(A) Classification
The Series Trust classifies financial assets and liabilities into the following categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Mandatorily at FVTPL: Investment in the Selected Fund.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

November 30, 2022 November 30, 2022
- Fair Value - Cost

Investment in Selected Fund $ 161,869,074 $ 196,606,700

November 30, 2021 November 30, 2021
- Fair Value - Cost

Investment in Selected Fund $ 240,227,164 $ 235,014,790

Financial assets at amortized cost:
Loans and receivables: cash and cash equivalents, receivables for units issued, receivable
for securities sold and other assets.

At November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021 the Series Trust held no financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Other liabilities: payables for purchase of units repurchased, fee agent fees, investment
management fees, distribution fees, professional fees, administrator fees, agent member
company fees, custody fees, transfer agent fees and registration fees.

(B) Recognition/Derecognition

The Series Trust recognizes financial assets and liabilities on the date it becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are
recognized on the trade date - the date on which the Series Trust commits to purchase or sell the
investment. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognized when its contractual obligations are
discharged, canceled or expired.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

(C) Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at
fair value with transaction costs recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent
to initial recognition, all financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ©
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss® category are presented in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise. Realized gains or losses
on sale of investments are calculated using first-in-first-out method.

Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss are
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, if
any. This is considered to approximate fair value due to the short-term or immediate nature of
these instruments.

(D) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives and trading securities) is based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on
the reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. Investments or other
assets for which market quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair value as
determined in good faith in accordance with procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice from
the Manager. The resulting change in net unrealized gains or losses are reflected in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(E) Forward Contracts

Forward contracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument,
currency, commodity or an index at a specified future date for a specified price and may be
settled in cash or another financial asset. Forward contracts are valued using observable inputs,
such as currency exchange rates or commodity prices, applied to notional amounts stated in the
applicable contracts. Gains and losses are reported in net realized gain or loss on financial
assets through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

(F) Investment in Selected Fund

In principle, the Investment Manager will invest a majority of its asset in the Selected Fund.
The USD class of the Selected Fund is denominated in USD and will not be hedged into other
currencies. The Investment Manager will not invest in non-USD denominated assets. The Series
Trust®s investment in the Selected Fund is subject to the terms and conditions of the Selected
Fund"s offering documentation. The Series Trust records its investments in the Selected Fund at
fair value based primarily on the Selected Fund"s net assets value (““NAV”?), as determined by
the administrator of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust reviews the details of the reported
information obtained from the Selected Fund"s administrator and considers: (i) the liquidity of
the Selected Fund, or its underlying investments, (ii) the value date of the NAV provided, (iii)
any restrictions on redemptions, and (iv) the basis of accounting. Since the Series Trust invests
substantially all of its assets in the Selected Fund, net capital appreciation or depreciation,
respectively, of the Series Trust is generally based on net capital appreciation or depreciation,
respectively, of the Selected Fund. The value of the Series Trust"s investment in the Selected
Fund is based on available information and does not necessarily represent the amount that might
ultimately be realized, as such amount depends on future circumstances and cannot reasonably be
denominated unlit the Selected Fund®s underlying investment are actually liquidated. Further, the
Series Trust"s investment in the Selected Fund in indirectly subjected to restrictions, if any,
of the liquidity of the Selected Fund®s investments.

The Series Trust®"s investment in the Selected Fund is considered to be liquid and can be redeemed
on any business day. The Series Trust may submit to the Trustee of the Selected Fund or its duly
designated agent a Repurchase Notice requesting to have all or a portion its units repurchased on
the relevant repurchase date. The Trustee of the Selected Fund should receive the repurchase
notice by electronic transmission on or prior to 7:00 a.m. Eastern Time in the United States of
America on the applicable repurchase date. If such notice is not respect of the entire holding
units of the Series Trust, then the Trustee of the Selected Fund in its sole discretion may apply
a minimum repurchase requirement of more than one unit or JPY 10,000 (or its equivalent in any
currency).

2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. As at November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, all financial assets and
liabilities are shown at their gross amounts as none met the criteria for financial instrument
offsetting, and therefore have not been offset in the Statement of Financial Position.

136/240



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2.4 Receivables for Sale of Investment in the Selected Fund

Receivables for securities sold and payables for securities purchased represent trading
transactions that have been contracted for but not yet settled on the Statement of Financial
Position date. These amounts are recognized initially and subsequently measured at fair value,
less provision for impairment for amounts of receivables for securities sold. A provision for
impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Series Trust will not be able
to collect all amounts of receivables for securities sold. Significant financial difficulties of
the broker, probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and
default in payments are considered indicators that the amount of receivables for securities sold
is impaired. As at November 30, 2022, there were no payables for securities purchased.

2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation

(A) Functional and Presentation Currency

The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported to the investors in U.S. Dollars.
The Trustee considers the U.S. Dollar as the currency that most faithfully represents the
economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions of the Series Trust. The
financial statements are presented in U.S. Dollars, which is the Series Trust®"s functional and
presentation currency.

(B) Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in U.S. Dollar
amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities, issue
and repurchase of units and income and expense items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into U.S. Dollar amounts on the respective dates of such transactions.

Reported net realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in
foreign exchange rates on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are included in net realized gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities through profit or
loss, and net change in unrealized appreciation or depreciation on financial assets and
liabilities through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Realized and unrealized appreciation or depreciation from foreign currency transactions and
translation are disclosed separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.7 Distributions

The Series Trust may generate a certain amount of income each month. The current policy of the
Series Trust is to pay to unitholder a monthly distribution in respect of each distribution date
of an amount similar to the generated income attributable to the corresponding distribution
period.

The monthly distribution is expected to be computed from the following separate elements:

(i) an amount equal to the distributions received from the Selected Fund (net of all
applicable taxes); and

(i1) interest accrued on the distributions received from (a) above, from the time received by
the Custodian until paid out on the corresponding distribution date (the items referred to
in paragraphs (a) - (b) hereafter referred to as the "Generated Income™).

The amount of distribution paid in respect of each distribution date is determined by the Manager
in its sole discretion taking into account Generated Income, realized and unrealized capital
gains from the Selected Fund, and miscellaneous costs, among other factors, per unit each month.
The Manager may, in circumstances where it deems appropriate, elect that a monthly distribution
is not payable in respect of units for a relevant month. Circumstances where the Manager may make
such an election, include but are not limited to where it determines in its sole discretion that
application of the Series Trust"s investment objectives and policies have generated a negative
performance over the previous month or have underperformed to the extent that the Manager deems
it appropriate to make such an election.

Distributions declared and paid during the years ended November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021
were as follows:

2022 2021
Total Amount Total Amount
Class A Units $ 2,449,150 $ 2,822,190
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2.8 Repurchases of Units

The Series Trust has units which are repurchased at the holder®s option. The Series Trust
classifies its puttable instruments as liabilities in accordance with 1AS 32 (Amendment) <
Financial instruments: Presentation®. The amendment requires puttable financial instruments that
meet the definition of a financial liability to be classified as equity where certain strict
criteria are met. Those criteria include:

The puttable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets;

The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be
identical;

There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other
than the obligation on the issuer to repurchase; and

The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based
substantially on the profit or loss of the issuer.

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust®s units have been classified as equity at November
30, 2022 and November 30, 2021.

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of
the Series Trust®s total equity.

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial
Position date if the holder exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust®s total equity per unit at
the time of issue or repurchase. The Series Trust"s equity per unit is calculated by dividing the
total equity by the total number of outstanding units.

The Selected Fund finances its operations by issuing redeemable shares which are puttable at the
holder®s option and entitles the holder to a proportional stake in the respective Series Trust"s
net assets. The Series Trust holds shares in the Selected Fund. The Series Trust"s maximum
exposure to loss from its interests in the Selected Fund is equal to the total fair value of its
investments in the Selected Fund. Once the Series Trust has disposed of its shares in the
Selected Fund the Series Trust ceases to be exposed to any risk from the Selected Fund.
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2.9 Indemnities

The Trustee and the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enter into certain contracts that
contain a variety of indemnifications. The Series Trust"s maximum exposure under these
arrangements is unknown. However, the Series Trust has not had prior claims of losses pursuant to
these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.

2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased

Receivable for units issued is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement
of Financial Position date. Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount
that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date.

2.11 Net income or loss from financial instruments at FVTPL

Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes realized and unrealized gain or loss on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, interest income and
dividend income. Net realized gain or loss from financial instruments at FVTPL is calculated
using the first in, first out method. Net realized gain or loss on financial assets and
liabilities at FVTPL represents the difference between the cost of the financial instruments and
its settlement price of the sale trade.

Net change in unrealized (depreciation)/appreciation on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL
represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning
of the period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period and
its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period. Refer to Note 7 for further details.

Interest income presented on the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise interest on financial
assets and liabilities at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest basis.

Dividend income presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise dividend on financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at FVTPL. Dividend income is recognized when the right
to receive payment is established.

2.12 Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it from all
local income, profits and capital gains taxes until December 2, 2063. No such taxes are levied in
the Cayman Islands at the present time.
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The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income
and capital gains. Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. No withholding tax expense was paid during the years ended
November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021.

The Selected Fund invests in securities domiciled in countries other than Cayman Islands. Many of
these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable
to non-residents including the Selected Fund. These capital gains taxes are required to be
determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the
Selected Fund®s broker on a“withholding® basis.

In accordance with IAS 12 - Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax
liability when it is probable that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to
be assessed on the Series Trust®"s capital gains sourced from such foreign country, assuming the
relevant taxing authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and circumstances. The tax
liability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation authorities
using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. There is sometimes uncertainty about the way enacted tax law is applied to
offshore investment Series Trusts. This creates uncertainty about whether or not a tax liability
will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax
liabilities management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the
time which could influence the likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices
of the relevant tax authorities.

As at November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust
did not have a liability to record for any unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying
financial statements. While this represents the Manager®™s best estimate there remains a risk that
the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital gains earned by the Series
Trust. This could happen without giving prior warning, possibly on a retrospective basis, and
could result in a loss to the Series Trust.
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2.13 Investment in unconsolidated structured entities

The Series Trust has concluded that all investments in the unlisted Selected Fund, in which it
holds an interest but does not consolidate, meets the definition of structured entities due to
the following:

the voting rights in these entities are not the dominant rights in deciding who controls
them as they relate to administrative tasks only;

the entities® activities are restricted by their respective investment strategy or offering
documents; and

these entities have a narrow and well-defined objective to provide investment opportunities
to investors.

The nature of and risks associated with the Series Trust"s interest in the other funds are
disclosed in Note 5.

3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Net Asset Value of each unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the Net Asset
Value of the Series Trust by the total number of units of the Series Trust then outstanding. The
Administrator computes the Net Asset Value of the Series Trust at the close of business on each
dealing day.

The price of units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid in U.S. Dollars.

The minimum initial subscription must be no less than 1 unit. All unitholders must complete a
subscription application. The initial purchase price of units is $100 per unit. All payments for
the units must be made in U.S. Dollars.

The Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

After the initial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent
subscription date at the relevant subscription price. All payments for the units shall be made in
U.S. Dollars. The Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing
reasons.

The Trustee or its duly designated agent must receive the subscription price for the units on or

prior to 5:00 p.m. (Tokyo time) by no later than the second business day after the relevant
subscription date. Subscription applications are irrevocable.
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The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of November 30, 2022
were as follows:

Net Asset Value
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding per unit

Class A Units $ 165,756,961 1,822,411 $ 90.9548

The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of November 30, 2021
were as follows:

Net Asset Value
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding per unit

Class A Units $ 244,776,878 2,212,610 $ 110.6281

As of November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021 all issued units were held by one unitholder, who
holds 100% of interest in the net assets of the Series Trust.

A unitholder may transfer its holdings in units only with the prior written consent of the
Trustee which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. No transfer of units will be
effective and binding on the Trustee or unitholder until entered into the Series Trust"s register
of unitholders.

Each unitholder may submit to the Trustee or its duly designated agent a repurchase notice
requesting to have all or a portion of its units repurchased at the Repurchase Price on the
relevant repurchase date. Repurchase orders may be submitted in units. If such notice is not in
respect of the entire holding units of such unitholder recorded in the register of unitholders
then the Trustee in its sole discretion may apply a minimum repurchase requirement of 1 unit.
Repurchase notices are irrevocable.

At the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is
applied to each unit being repurchased.
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Contingent Deferred Sales Charge (*'CDSC™)
The repurchase proceeds payable to a unitholder may be subject to the deduction of the CDSC (if
applicable).

For units that are repurchased prior to the fifth anniversary of the date of their issue (whether
voluntarily or by way of a compulsory repurchase), a CDSC, calculated as a percentage of the
purchase price paid at the time of subscription for such units will be charged by the Distributor
in accordance with the following scale and paid to Credit Suisse International.

Holding Period CDSC
1 year or less 2.00%
More than 1 year to 2 years or less 1.60%
More than 2 years to 3 years or less 1.20%
More than 3 years to 4 years or less 0.80%
More than 4 years to 5 years or less 0.40%
More than 5 years None

For the purpose of calculating the holding period applicable to the CDSC, units will start ageing
from the first day of the month which follows the month in which such units were issued until the
relevant Repurchase Day.

The CDSC (if applicable) will be deducted from the Repurchase Price and is payable by the
relevant repurchasing unitholder to the Fee Agent and not to the Series Trust.

Upon a Compulsory Repurchase Event occurring or the Series Trust terminating prior to the Final
Repurchase Day, the CDSC shall similarly apply; and the CDSC will be calculated as if the
relevant units were repurchased on the day on which the Compulsory Repurchase Event or
termination of the Series Trust takes effect, unless the Manager in its discretion determines
otherwise.

In accordance with the terms of the Fee Agent Appointment Agreement, the Fee Agent shall continue
to be entitled to receive the CDSC if its appointment as Fee Agent is terminated.

Amounts payable to the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units of any class are
paid in cash but may be made in kind (or partially in kind) by the distribution of securities
held by the Trustee to the extent that the Trustee, in consultation with the Manager, determines
it to be in the best interests of the unitholder. If such a determination is made by the Trustee,
distributions to all repurchasing unitholders on the same day are made on the same basis.

144/240



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Payment may also be made in such other currency that may be freely purchased with such applicable
currency as a unitholder may request, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted
from the amount payable to such unitholder. No such repurchase proceeds will bear interest prior
to actual distribution.

During the years ended November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, the proceeds from units issued,
repurchased and outstanding were as follows:

Proceeds from Proceeds from
Classes of units units issued units repurchased
Class A Units $ 19,644,117 $ (57,366,190)

Proceeds from Proceeds from
Classes of units units issued units repurchased
Class A Units $ 88,068,462 $ (72,457,618)

During the years ended November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, the number of units issued,
repurchased and outstanding were as follows:

At At
Classes of units November 30, 2021 Units issued Units repurchased November 30, 2022
Class A Units 2,212,610 192,357 (582,556) 1,822,411

At At
Classes of units November 30, 2020 Units issued Units repurchased November 30, 2021
Class A Units 2,073,673 795,026 (656,089) 2,212,610

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended
in any circumstances where the calculation of the Net Asset Value per unit is suspended. The
Trustee will inform unitholder of such a suspension as soon as practicable after it is imposed or
lifted. Subscription applications and repurchase notices cannot be withdrawn during such
suspension and will be processed for the next subscription date or repurchase date, as the case
may be.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The Series Trust may, from time to time, hold financial instruments that
are not quoted in active markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives. Fair values of such
instruments are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques (for
example, models) are used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed
by the Manager.

5. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust"s investment portfolio mainly comprises of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust"s
activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair
value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The management of these
risks is carried out by the Manager under policies approved by the Trustee.

The Series Trust may be materially affected by the actions of another entity investing in the
Selected Fund. For example, if another unitholder of the Selected Fund repurchases some or all of
its interests in the Selected Fund, the Selected Fund and, in turn, the Series Trust, may
experience higher pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing lower returns. Similarly, the
Selected Fund may become less diverse due to repurchases from its other unitholders, resulting in
increased portfolio risk. The Selected Fund may restrict its investment activities or be
precluded from investing in certain instruments due to regulatory restrictions on certain of its
direct or indirect investors or otherwise, which may have an adverse effect on the performance of
the Selected Fund, and, in turn, the Series Trust.

(A) Market Risk

(i) Currency Risk

Investment in the Selected Fund and forward contracts in which the Series Trust invests may be
denominated or quoted in currencies other than the functional currency of the Series Trust. For
this reason, changes in foreign currency exchange rates can affect the value of the Series
Trust®s portfolio.
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Generally, when the Series Trust®s functional currency rises in value against another currency, a
security denominated in that currency loses value because the currency is worth less giving
effect to the conversion into the Series Trust"s functional currency. Conversely, when the Series
Trust"s functional currency decreases in value against another currency, a security denominated
in that currency gains value.

This risk, generally known as "currency risk," means that a strong functional currency of the
Series Trust may reduce returns to investors while a weak functional currency of the Series Trust
may increase those returns. Currency rates may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time
for a number of reasons, including changes in interest rates, intervention (or the failure to
intervene) by the governments, central banks or supranational entities such as the International
Monetary Fund, or by the imposition of currency controls or other political developments. As a
result, the Series Trust"s investments in foreign-currency denominated securities may reduce its
returns. Certain positions taken by the Series Trust are designed to profit from forecasting
currency price movements. Predicting future prices is inherently uncertain and the losses
incurred, if the market moves against a position, will not be hedged. The speculative aspect of
attempting to predict absolute price movements is generally perceived to exceed that involved in
attempting to predict relative price fluctuations.

Through the use of various types of foreign currency transactions, the Series Trust may be
exposed to the performance of a particular currency or currencies to contribute to the
performance of the Series Trust. There can be no assurance that the Manager will employ a
successful currency program and the Series Trust could incur losses attributable to its currency
activities when the value of the functional currency weakens against the other currencies of the
Series Trust. In addition, the Series Trust will incur transaction costs in connection with the
currency strategy designated by the Manager.

At November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021 the Series Trust was not exposed to currency risk.
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(i1) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that prices of fixed income securities generally increase when
interest rates decline and decrease when interest rates increase. Prices of longer term
securities generally change more in response to interest rate changes than prices of shorter term
securities. The Series Trust may lose money if short-term or long-term interest rates rise
sharply or otherwise change in a manner not anticipated by Series Trust management. When interest
rates fluctuate, the duration of the security may be used as an indication of the degree of
change in the debt price of the debt security. The bigger the security"s duration value, the
larger the change in the price of the debt security for a given movement in interest rates may
be. Therefore, the Net Asset Value may fluctuate.

Interest bearing assets held by the Series Trust are comprised of cash and cash equivalents whose
maturity is less than three months and the investment in the Selected Fund.

The yield on the Selected Fund®s (and indirectly, the Series Trust"s) investments may be
sensitive to changes in prevailing interest rates, which may result in a mismatch between the
Selected Fund®s asset yield and borrowing rates and consequently reduce or eliminate income
derived from its investments.

If interest rates increase, prices of fixed income securities generally decline, reducing the
value of the Selected Fund®s (and indirectly, the Series Trust®s) investments. A major change in
interest rates or a significant decline in the market value of the Selected Fund"s (and
indirectly, the Series Trust®"s) investments, or other market event, could cause the value of the
investments of the Master Fund"s investors (and indirectly the unitholders® investments in the
Series Trust), or its yield, to decline.

The Series Trust may invest in municipal bond securities through its indirect exposure to the
investments of the Selected Fund. Any changes to prevailing interest rates or changes in
expectations of future rates may result in an increase or decrease in the value of the securities
held.

At November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, should interest rates have lowered or risen by 50
basis points with all other variables remaining constant, the increase or decrease in total
comprehensive income of the Series Trust (being increase in net assets attributable to the holder
of units from operations for the period) would amount to approximately $20,279 and $26,364,
respectively, assuming that the cash position will be held for one year.
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(iii) Market Price Risk

The market price of investments owned by the Series Trust and securities held by the Selected
Fund may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or unpredictably. Securities may decline in value due
to factors affecting securities markets generally or particular industries represented in the
securities markets. The value of a security may decline due to general market conditions which
are not specifically related to a particular company, such as real or perceived adverse economic
conditions, supply and demand for particular securities or instruments, changes in the general
outlook for corporate earnings, changes in interest or currency rates or adverse investor
sentiment. They may also decline due to factors which affect a particular industry or industries,
such as labor shortages or increased production costs and competitive conditions within an
industry. During a general downturn in the securities markets, multiple asset classes may decline
in value simultaneously. Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fixed
income securities.

An increase in market prices of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at November 30, 2022
and November 30, 2021, would have increased the total equity by $1,618,691 and $2,402,272,
respectively. A decrease of 1% would, all else being equal, have an equal but opposite effect.

As at November 30, 2022, the investments of the Selected Fund are mainly in Corporate Bonds and
Municipal Bonds, which represent approximately 11% (2021: 11%) and 88% (2021: 88%) of the net
assets of the Selected Fund, respectively.

For the Selected Fund, the investments are primarily concentrated in the United States of America
at November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021.

(B) Credit Risk

Changes in an issuer™s credit rating or the market"s perception of an issuer®s creditworthiness
may affect the value of the Series Trust"s investment in that issuer. The degree of credit risk
depends on both the financial condition of the issuer and the terms of the obligation.
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Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the credit risk
associated with debt instruments that may be held by the Selected Fund. The increased credit risk
may prevent the Selected Fund®s investment objective and consequently the Series Trust®s
investment objective from being achieved. All transactions in listed securities held by the
Selected Fund are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is
considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received
payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The
trade will fail if either party fails to meet their obligation.

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust"s credit position on an on-going basis.

Municipal Bond securities in which the Selected Fund may invest could be subject to the credit
risk of the underlying assets and in the event of default of such assets and the exhaustion of
any underlying credit support, the Selected Fund may not recover its full investment.
Furthermore, it is possible that some issuers of fixed income securities in which the Selected
Fund invests will be unable to make the required payments on their debt securities held by the
Selected Fund. Debt securities could also go up or down in value based on the perceived
creditworthiness of issuers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets of the Series Trust as of November
30, 2022 and November 30, 2021 is the carrying amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial
Position. No collateral or other credit enhancements are held by the Series Trust. None of these
assets are impaired or past due.

The clearing and depository operations for the Selected Fund"s security transactions are mainly
concentrated with the Custodian. At November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, substantially all
cash and cash equivalents and investments are placed in custody with the Custodian, with a Fitch
credit rating of A+.
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The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Selected Fund®s debt portfolio at
November 30, 2022 as a percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Rating” % of Net Assets

Aaa 3.1%
Aal 8.0%
Aa2 27 .4%
Aa3 18.4%
Al 21.6%
A2 9.6%
A3 5.2%
Baal 2.5%
Baa2 2.8%

98.6%

*Security ratings, if any, are obtained from Moody"s Investor Service.

The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Selected Fund®s debt portfolio at
November 30, 2021 as a percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Rating” % of Net Assets

Aaa 5.0%
Aal 7.2%
Aa2 27.1%
Aa3 19.4%
Al 15.0%
A2 13.3%
A3 4.7%
Baal 2.0%
Baa2 2.8%
NR 2.2%

98.7%

*Security ratings, if any, are obtained from Moody"s Investor Service.
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(C) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series
Trust™s investments in illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it
may be unable to sell the illiquid securities at an advantageous time or price. To the extent
that the Series Trust"s principal investment strategies involve derivatives or securities with
substantial market and/or credit risk, the Series Trust will tend to have the greatest exposure
to liquidity risk.

The tables below analyze the Series Trust"s financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping
based on the remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At November 30, 2022 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total

Payables for:
Units repurchased $ 2,902,286 $ -3 2,902,286
Fee Agent fees 297,316 - 297,316
Investment management fees 147,427 - 147,427
Distribution fees 33,981 - 33,981
Custody fees 33,691 - 33,691
Administrator fees 22,172 - 22,172
Professional fees 19,333 - 19,333
Agent Member Company fees 7,623 - 7,623
Registration fees 630 - 630
Transfer agent fees 599 - 599

Contractual cash out flows (excluding net assets

attributable to the holder of units) $ 3,465,058 $ -3 3,465,058

At November 30, 2021 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total

Payables for:
Units repurchased $ 518,698 $ - $ 518,698
Fee Agent fees 392,418 - 392,418
Distribution fees 103,841 - 103,841
Investment management fees 83,072 - 83,072
Administrator fees 20,386 - 20,386
Professional fees 18,324 - 18,324
Agent Member Company fees 9,002 - 9,002
Custody fees 4,991 - 4,991
Registration fees 630 - 630
Transfer agent fees 400 - 400

Contractual cash out flows (excluding net assets

attributable to the holder of units) $ 1,151,762 $ -3 1,151,762
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The Manager monitors the Series Trust®s liquidity position on an on-going basis.

Liquidity risk is managed by investing no more than 15% of the Net Asset Value in illiquid
assets.

There were no derivative financial instruments held by the Series Trust as at November 30, 2022
and November 30, 2021.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the liquidity risk
associated with unitholder repurchases in accordance with the terms in the Selected Fund®s
Prospectus. The Series Trust is managed to include liquid investments sufficient to meet normal
liquidity needs although substantial repurchases of Units in the Series Trust could require the
Selected Fund to liquidate its investments more rapidly than otherwise desirable in order to
raise cash for the repurchases. These factors could adversely affect the value of the units
repurchased and the valuation of the units that remain outstanding and the liquidity of the
Series Trust"s remaining assets if more liquid assets have been sold to meet the repurchases.

There were no repurchase fees applied in respect to the Selected Fund for the years ended
November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021.

(D) Risk Management

The Series Trust"s Investment Manager's team is supported by certain risk management systems and
professionals, which provide regular reporting on all portfolio positions and quantitative risk
measures.
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The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to the holder of
units.

The amount of net assets attributable to the holder of units can change significantly on a daily
basis as the Series Trust is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of
the unitholder. The Series Trust"s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Series
Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for the unitholder and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of the investment activities of the Series Trust. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Series Trust"s policy is to perform the following:

Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and
adjust the amount of distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of units.

Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Series
Trust.

The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holder
of units.

5.2 Additional Series Trust"s Risks

(A) Custody Risk

Neither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust"s entire
holding of indirect investments. The Custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to act
as custodians may become insolvent, causing the Series Trust to lose all or a portion of the
funds or securities held by those custodians.

(B) Risk of Indemnification
The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their
respective agents, principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Series Trust under certain circumstances which may result in a decrease
in Net Asset Value per unit.
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(C) Settlement Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in
the United States, the European Union and Japan. Foreign settlement and clearance procedures and
trade regulations also may involve certain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of
securities) not typically associated with the settlement of United States investments. At times,
settlements in certain foreign countries have not kept pace with the number of securities
transactions. These problems may make it difficult for the Selected Fund and ultimately, the
Manager to carry out transactions for the account of the Series Trust. If the Manager cannot
settle or is delayed in settling a purchase of securities, it may miss attractive investment
opportunities and certain of the Series Trust"s assets may be uninvested with no return earned
thereon for some period.

IT the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a sale
of securities, the Series Trust may lose money if the value of the underlying security then
declines or, if it has contracted to sell the security to another party; the Series Trust could
be liable for any losses incurred.

(D) Derivatives

The Manager may use derivative instruments to hedge the Series Trust®s investments or to seek to
enhance the Series Trust"s returns. Derivatives allow the risk exposure of the Series Trust to
increase or decrease more quickly and efficiently than other types of instruments. Derivatives
are volatile and involve significant risks, including:

Credit Risk - the risk that the counterparty (the party on the other side of the transaction)
on a derivative transaction will be unable to honor its financial obligation to the Series
Trust.

Leverage Risk - the risk associated with certain types of investments or trading strategies
that relatively small market movements may result in large changes in the value of an
investment. Certain investments or trading strategies that involve leverage can result in
losses that greatly exceed the amount originally invested.

Liquidity Risk - the risk that certain securities may be difficult or impossible to sell at

the time that the seller would like or at the price that the seller believes the security is
currently worth.
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The Manager may use derivatives for hedging purposes for the Series Trust, including anticipatory
hedges. Hedging is a strategy in which the Manager uses a derivative to offset the risks
associated with other Series Trust®s holdings. While hedging can reduce losses, it can also
reduce or eliminate gains or cause losses if the market moves in a manner different from that
anticipated by the Manager or if the cost of the derivative outweighs the benefit of the hedge.
Hedging also involves the risk that changes in the value of the derivative will not match those
of the holdings being hedged as expected by the Manager, in which case any losses on the holdings
being hedged may not be reduced and may be increased. There is no assurance that the Series
Trust"s hedging strategy will reduce risk or that hedging transactions are either available or
cost effective. The Manager is not required to use hedging for the Series Trust and may choose
not to do so. Because the Manager may use derivatives to seek to enhance the Series Trust"s
returns, its investments will expose the Series Trust to the risks outlined above to a greater
extent than if the Manager used derivatives solely for hedging purposes. Use of derivatives to
seek to enhance returns is considered speculative.

As of November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, there were no Series Trust derivative assets and
derivative liabilities subject to netting arrangements and similar arrangements.

(E) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the
Custodian, with which the Manager or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series
Trust, may encounter financial difficulties and default on their respective obligations owed in
respect of the Series Trust. Any such default could result in material losses to the Series
Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the Series Trust to the
counterparties in order to secure certain transactions. No collateral was pledged by the Manager
during the years ended November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021.

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or financial liabilities in the Statement of
Financial Position.
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(F) Generated Income and Distributions

There is no guarantee that there will be any Generated Income. Distributions may be paid in whole
or in part out of investment principal attributable to the units or, alternatively, the Generated
Income may be zero. A distribution can in effect result in a return of an investor"s initial
capital or capital gains thereby eroding that capital to the extent the distribution exceeds
available income. In consequence of this possibility, investors seeking capital preservation may
not achieve this given probable deterioration in the value of the Series Trust"s investments
caused by declining asset values and a return of capital to investors by way of distribution. If
the Series Trust is not profitable, the Repurchase Price a unitholder receives back in respect of
a repurchase of units may be less than the unitholder®s initial investment.

The Generated Income partially relies on the receipt of distributions paid by the Selected Fund.
Should the Selected Fund fail to pay any distributions or pay less than anticipated, or due to a
rise in the non-treaty tax rate applicable to the Series Trust, then the Series Trust will gain
correspondingly less than investors may previously have expected. Furthermore, if the interest
rate at which the distributions received accrue falls during the monthly period, this may also
lead to the Generated Income being lower than expected.

(G) No Interest in the Selected Fund
The return on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Fund.
An investment in units does not give a unitholder a direct interest in the Selected Fund.

(H) Early Termination of the Series Trust
Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2163, the
Final Repurchase Day will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur.

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Series Trust applies IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement® and utilizes the last traded market

price for its fair valuation inputs for both financial assets and liabilities.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
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The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each period end date. Valuation
techniques used for non-standardized financial instruments such as options, currency swaps and
other over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent arm®s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants making the maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-
specific inputs.

For instruments for which there is no active market, the Series Trust may use internally
developed models, which are usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally
recognized as standard within the industry. Some of the inputs to these models may not be market
observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions. The output of a model is always an
estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and valuation
techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the Series Trust
holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for additional factors
including model risk, liquidity risk and counterparty risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects
the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in
its entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed
against the fair value measurement in its entirety. ITf a fair value measurement uses observable
inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a
Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or
liability.

The determination of what constitutes “ observable” requires significant judgment by the
Administrator, under advisement of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the
Manager, considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly
distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent
sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of November 30,
2022 in valuing the Series Trust"s financial assets:

(Unadjusted) Quoted Significant Significant
Prices in Active Other Unobservable

Financial Assets at Fair Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Fair Value at
Value Through Profit or Loss Investments (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) (Level 3) November 30, 2022
Investment in the Selected Fund
Municipal Core Fund USD Class $ -3 161,869,074 $ -3 161,869,074
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss $ - $ 161,869,074 $ -3 161,869,074

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of November 30,
2021 in valuing the Series Trust"s financial assets and liabilities:

(Unadjusted) Quoted Significant Significant
Prices in Active Other Unobservable

Financial Assets at Fair Markets for lIdentical Observable Inputs Fair Value at
Value Through Profit or Loss Investments (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) (Level 3) November 30, 2021
Investment in the Selected Fund
Municipal Core Fund USD Class $ - $ 240,227,164 $ - $ 240,227,164
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss $ - $ 240,227,164 $ - $ 240,227,164

During the years ended November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, there were no transfers between
Levels 1, 2 and 3.
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Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued
based on quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by
observable inputs are classified within Level 2. These include over-the-counter derivatives and
debt securities. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active markets
and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity
and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

For purposes of calculating the NAV of the Selected Fund, fixed income securities for which
market quotes are readily available are normally valued on the basis of quotes obtained from
established market makers or pricing services and are classified as Level 2 investments in the
financial statements of the Selected Fund. Forward contracts are valued using observable inputs
which can generally be corroborated by market data and are therefore classified as Level 2
investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund. As of November 30, 2022 and
November 30, 2021 all financial assets and liabilities were classified as Level 2 investments.

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

(i) At November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, cash and cash equivalents and all other assets
and liabilities (including receivables for units issued, other assets and payables for
securities purchased, fee agent fees, investment management fees, distribution fees,
professional fees, administrator fees, agent member company fees, custody fees, transfer
agent fees, registration fees and purchase of the investment in the Selected Fund) are
deemed short-term financial assets and liabilities whose carrying amounts approximate fair
value because of their short-term nature. Refer to Note 2 for a description of the
valuation techniques.
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5.4 Investments in unconsolidated structured entities

As of November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, the Selected Fund"s net asset value was JPY
25,823,285,335 (approximately US$ 185,086,621) and JPY 30,799,123,950 (approximately US$
271,286,215), respectively. As of November 30, 2022, the Selected Fund held total investments of
JPY 25,568,902,731 comprising of fixed income securities (corporate bonds, municipal bonds &
notes, and time deposits) of JPY 25,486,839,018 and forward contracts of JPY 82,063,713. As of
November 30, 2021, the Selected Fund held total investments of JPY 30,674,985,773 comprising of
fixed income securities (corporate bonds, municipal bonds & notes, and time deposits) of JPY
30,680,748,400 and forward contracts of JPY (5,762,627). The valuation of investments in
unconsolidated structured entities represents the amount the Series Trust would expect to receive
if it were to liquidated or redeem its investments subject to the underlying fund®s liquidity or
redemption restrictions and costs.

The Selected Fund is financed through equity capital provided by investors, include the Series
Trust. During the years ended November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, the Series Trust did not
provide any other financial support to the Selected Fund and has no intention of providing
financial or other support to this entity.

The rights attached to the Series Trust"s holding in the Selected Fund is similar to those of
other investors. Subscriptions into the Selected Fund are governed by the rights stipulated in
their offering documents. The Series Trust has the ability to liquidate or redeem its investments
periodically in accordance with the provisions of the respective fund agreements. Refer to Note 2
for information regarding the investment objectives and liquidity provisions of the Selected
Fund.

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward Contracts

The Investment Manager for the Selected Fund enters into forward contracts for the Selected Fund
by buying forward contracts, under normal circumstances in an amount equal, to the extent
possible, to approximately 100% of the USD exposure of the Net Asset Value (excluding unrealized
currency gain or losses).

The Investment Manager enters into forward contracts for the Series Trust by buying forward
contracts.

As of November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, there were no open forward contracts in the Series
Trust.

161/240



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

7. NET LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

November 30, 2022 November 30, 2021

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss consist of the following:

Net realized (loss)/gain on investments in the Selected Fund $ (3,923,731) $ 2,274,301
Net realized (loss) on investments in forward contracts (165) (58)
Total net realized (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss $ (3,923,896) $ 2,274,243

Movement in net unrealized (depreciation) on investments in the

Selected Fund $ (39,950,000) $ (5,140,394)
Total net change in unrealized (depreciation) on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss $ (39,950,000) $ (5,140,394)

8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

8.1 Fees and Expenses

(A) Administrator Fees

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.06% on the first US$500 million of the net assets,
0.05% on the next US$500 million of the net assets and 0.04% on the net assets over US$1 billion,
subject to a monthly minimum fee of $3,750. The fees earned by the Administrator during the years
ended November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, and outstanding fees payable to the Administrator
as of November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Custodian receives asset based and transactional charges dependent on market demographics of
the assets. The fees earned by the Custodian during the years ended November 30, 2022 and
November 30, 2021, and outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of November 30, 2022 and
November 30, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement
of Financial Position, respectively.
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(C) Distribution Fees

The Distributor receives an annual fee of 0.25% of the Net Asset Value payable monthly in
arrears.

The Distribution Fees are payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the
assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Distributor during the years ended November
30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, and outstanding fees payable to the Distributor as of November
30, 2022 and November 30, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(D) Transfer Agent Fees

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of the Net Asset Value and a $10 fee per
transaction out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Transfer Agent during
the years ended November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, and outstanding fees payable to the
Transfer Agent as of November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(E) Professional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the years ended November 30,
2022 and November 30, 2021, and outstanding fees payable as of November 30, 2022 and November 30,
2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial
Position, respectively.

8.2 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.
The Trustee, Fee Agent, Manager and Agent Member Company are all related parties to the Series
Trust.

There were no other transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of
business.

(A) Trustee Fees

The Trustee is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee a fixed annual fee of $10,000
payable annually in advance. The fees earned by the Trustee during the years ended November 30,
2022 and November 30, 2021, and outstanding fees payable to the Trustee as of November 30, 2022
and November 30, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a part of Fee Agent fees.
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(B) Investment Management Fees

The Investment Manager receives an annual fee of 0.20% of the Net Asset Value payable quarterly
in arrears.

The fees earned by the Investment Manager during the years ended November 30, 2022 and November
30, 2021, and outstanding fees payable to the Investment Manager as of November 30, 2022 and
November 30, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement
of Financial Position, respectively.

The Investment Manager of the Selected Fund receives a fee at the rate of 0.32% per annum, paid
monthly in arrears out of the assets of the Selected Fund based on the average Net Asset Value in
the preceding month.

(C) Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.12% of Net Assets Value (the "Operational Costs Fees'™)
and 0.57% of Net Assets Value (the "Sales Administrative Fees™), accrued on and calculated as at
each valuation day. The Operational Costs Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the
Trustee out of the assets of the Series Trust.

The fees earned by the Fee Agent during years ended November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, and
outstanding fees payable to the Fee Agent as of November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021 have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position,
respectively.

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying certain ongoing and operational costs and expenses of the
Series Trust, including manager fees and the following costs and expenses, which are, in
reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent, determined as ordinary costs and expenses (the "Ordinary
Costs™):

(i) auditing costs that are not included in the audit fees and expenses;

(i1) annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to government bodies and
agencies; and

(iii)insurance costs (if any).
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For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the sales
administrative fees, investment manager fees, audit fees, formation expenses, distribution fees,
administration fees, custody fees, any broker fees relating to security transactions, any costs
relating to the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 25 and other similar offering documents and the
costs relating to the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such documents and any
taxes relating to the purchase or disposal of securities, legal or compensation costs, licensing
and any other extraordinary costs and expenses that would not usually occur.

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the
Fee Agent is liable for any outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining following payment of the
Ordinary Costs shall be retained by the Fee Agent as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in
respect of the Series Trust.

The Operational Costs Fees and the Sales Administrative Fees accrue daily on an actual / 365 day
count fraction basis and are payable quarterly in arrears in the amount accrued, from and
excluding, for the first accrual period only, the initial closing day, and for all other accrual
periods, the last day of each calendar quarter.

(D) Manager Fees
The Manager is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee, a management fee of $5,000
per annum payable monthly in arrears, as a part of Fee Agent fees.

(E) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company is entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value
payable quarterly in arrears. The Agent Member Company Fees are paid by the Administrator, on
behalf of the Manager out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Agent Member
Company during the years ended November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021 and outstanding fees
payable to the Agent Member Company as of November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021 have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position,
respectively.

9. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY
The Series Trust may borrow up to 10% of its Net Asset Value if required to facilitate short term

cash flows. During the years ended November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021, the Series Trust did
not incur any borrowings.
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10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On March 19, 2023, UBS Group AG (““UBS””) agreed to acquire Credit Suisse Group AG (““Credit
Suisse””) following intervention by the Swiss Federal Department of Finance, the Swiss National
Bank and the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

The Series Trust has no exposure related to investments in financial assets with Credit Suisse
International.

As of May 4, 2023, the Manager and the Trustee have not received any formal communication
regarding the transition of roles, responsibilities, or obligations from Credit Suisse to UBS.
Until the consummation of the transaction, the Manager and the Trustee understand that Credit
Suisse will continue to conduct its operations in the ordinary course. The Manager and the
Trustee expect the acquisition will take time to close and as a result, the full impact on the
financial performance and the operations of the Series Trust will depend on future developments
which are uncertain and cannot be predicted at this time.

The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through May 4, 2023, the date on
which these financial statements were available to be issued. Effective December 1, 2022 through
May 4, 2023, there were subscriptions of $27,785,706 and repurchases of $6,605,355. During the
same period, there were distributions of $946,180. There are no other subsequent events to report
as relates to the Series Trust.
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4,445,122 593,557,093
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168/240



02110-1548

50

169/240

33.2

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50

10

10

15

21



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 735,000 9,814

10

2023

170/240



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
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13 76,594,236
81,846,762,930

766,425,956

25 153,771,273,304
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2021 2020

usD usD
1,541 206 16,025 2,140
1,541 206 16,025 2,140
1,541 206 16,025 2,140
210,000 28,041 220,000 29,377

4 1

211,545 28,248 236,025 31,516
(111,758) (14,923)  (111,476) (14,885)
99,787 13,325 124,549 16,631
99,787 13,325 124,549 16,631
99,787 13,325 124,549 16,631
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2021 12 31

2021 2020

usD usD
9 1,759,688 234,971 1,643,796 219,496
10 210,863 28,157 220,970 29,506
1,970,551 263,128 1,864,766 249,002
10 223,931 29,902 217,933 29,101
223,931 29,902 217,933 29,101
11 735,000 98,145 735,000 98,145
1,011,620 135,082 911,833 121,757
1,746,620 233,226 1,646,833 219,902

1,970,551 263,128 1,864,766 249,002
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2021
735,000 98,145 911,833 121,757 1,646,833 219,902
99,787 13,325 99,787 13,325
12 31 735,000 98,145 1,011,620 135,082 1,746,620 233,226
2020

735,000 98,145 787,284 105,126 1,522,284 203,271
124,549 16,631 124,549 16,631
12 31 735,000 98,145 911,833 121,757 1,646,833 219,902
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2021 12 31
2021 2020

USD USD
99,787 13,325 124,549 16,631
4 (1,541) (206) (16,025) (2,140)
98,246 13,119 108,524 14,491
10,107 1,350 (3,543) 473)
10,107 1,350 (3.543) 473)
5,998 801 86,604 11,564
5,998 801 86,604 11,564
4 1,541 206 16,025 2,140
115,892 15,475 207,610 27,722
115,892 15,475 207,610 27,722
1,643,796 219,496 1,436,186 191,774
1,759,688 234,971 1,643,796 219,496
9 1,759,688 234,971 1,643,796 219,496

1,759,688 234,971 1,643,796 219,496
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KYl 1104
309 c/oMaples Corporate Services Limited,
P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

IFRS
IFRS IAS
1ASB

IFRS

usb
usD usD

1771240
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IFRS

ECL ECL
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2021
IFRS 16 CovID 19
IFRS IAS 39 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16
1ASB IFRS
15

2021 2020

1,541 16,025
1,541 16,025
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2021 2020
210,000 220,000
210,000 220,000

2021 2020

) (1,182)
(5,272) (3,201)
(106, 485) (107,093)

(111,758) (111,476)

2039 10 10
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5,000 2020 5,000 2021 12 31

REITa

CS

us

us

NB  MYAM
UK

AMP

AMP REIT
J REIT

CAT
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HOLT
PIMCO
J REIT
AHL
SBI PICTET
us
17 20

2021

2021 2020
1,759,688 1,643,796
1,759,688 1,643,796

2021 2020

210,863 220,970
210,863 220,970
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2021 2020

223,931 217,933

223,931 217,933
2021 2020

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2020 12 31

HKD

HKD USD usD

HKD
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

210,863 210,863 220,863 220,863

210,863 210,863 220,863 220,863

223,931 223,931 217,933 217,933
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
958,931 958,931 952,933 952,933

2021 2020
210,000 210,000 220,000 220,000
210,000 210,000 220,000 220,000
2021 2020
106,485 107,093
106,485 107,093

2021

12 31
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Cred? Suicea Management (Capman) Linied
Finmncial statemants for B pewr erged 81 Decomber 2027

Statement of Income for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

usD ﬁf‘hw 2021 2020

R A
T ol which Interest income from insiruments st

amoviiced cosf 1,541 16,025
Met interest income 4 1,541 16,025

Jsus

Senvieerfeeincome T 000 220000

Ciner revenves q =
Met revenues 211,545 236,025

"Bereral, adminsiratiee and oiher operaling expenses 6 (111,768)  (111,478)
Operating profit befare allowance and taxation 99,787 124,548

Profit before tax 849,787 124,549

Income fax expense 7 -
Profit after tax 899,787 124,543

The accomparying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Lot Sulsse Mansgemen! {Crman Linted
Firgncil slatorents fo Y poar oroed 81 Docomtey 2021

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021

usD ﬁ::ﬂlm‘:mﬂ 2021 2020
e s e e s
Cashardduefromoanes © TG B088E T 1 64506
Othver assets 10 210,863 200,970
Total assets 1,870,551 1,864,766
Liabilities

e . pr— i e T
Total liabilities 223,931 217,933

Sharecepital M 735000 735000

Ratained pmiég's' 3 10116200 611,838
Total shareholders’ equity 1,746,620 1,646,833
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 1,970,551 1,864,766

Aporoved and authonised for issue by the board of directors on

Diresctor

o ™ S S g™

Nicolas Papovoine
Directar
Credit Suisse Monogement [Cayman] Limited

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial slatements.
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Crma Sitesa Marogamant (Capmom) Limias
Flancis! stadwmants for the pear encled 31 Dacpmbor 2021

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Share capital Retained
uso earrings Total

2021

“Balanceatijanuary 735000 911,833 1,646,833
Profit for the year - 98,787 08,787
Balance at 31 December 735,000 1,011,620 1,746,620

“Belance at 1 January T 785,000 787,084 1522284

Prafi for the year s 104,545 104,649
Balance at 31 December 735,000 911,833 1,646,833

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these firancial stalements.
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Gk Summsger blenogeesont [Cxyrtan] Lied
Flnenesd 3 fafemanis for the year sncad 31 Docamber 2021

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

usD ﬁ‘iﬁ"g'::w 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities
Frofil bafora fa for the period 93,787 194 549
Adjustments to reconclle net profit to net cash
_genergted from/(used in) operating activities
MNeon-cash items included in net profit before tax
and other adjustments:
JORrEStINCOME e eesinninn 4 (1,541} (16,025)
e D R e e
changes in operaling assets and liabilities 98,245 108,524
Net decrease/(Increase) in operating assets: .o
Oher assats 10,107 {3.543)
Met decrease/({increase) in cperating assets 10,107 {3,543)
Met increase in operating liabilities:
crmeruamwesa,ggsaamr.
Net increase In operating liabllities: 5998 .....B6,804
Interagt income receied 4 1,541 16,005
Met cash generated from cperating activity 115,892 207,610
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 115,892 207,810
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 1,643,756 1,426,186
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of year 1,759,688 1,643,796
Cash and due from banks a 1,750,688 1,643,796
Cash and cash eguivalents al the end of year 1,759,688 1,643,796

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemenis.
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Gt Suisge fanagemen! (Cigeman) Limited
INohes lo Finpacis sfelnmands fov e pear anciad 31 Decamies 2021

Motes to the financial statements

1. Principal activities

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Company”) is incerporated in fhe Cayman Islands
with limited llabdty. The Company’s principal acthilies are the creation of trusts and the administration
ard management of assets In trusts. The Compary's reglstered office is c/o Maples Corporate
Senvices Limited, P.0. Box 309, Uglard House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman |glande.

2. Significant Accounting Pelicies
{a)}  Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordence with all applcable International
Financial Reporing Starwards (FRSs", which collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards, Intematicnal Accounting Standards (ASs") and
Interpretations issued by International Accounting Standards Board (TASEY). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adepted by the Company is set out below,

(b}  Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial staterments is the historical cost basis,

The preparation of financisl statemenls in corformity with IFRSs reguires management to make
judgements, ectimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reperted amounts
of assels, liahilifies, income and experses. The estimates and associated assumplions ase based on
higtorical expedence and varius other factors {hal are believed fo be rmeasonable under fhe
circumstarces, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carmying values of
assets and lizbilties that ame nol readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
theze estimates.

The estimaies and underiying assumptions zre reviswed on an ongeing bass.  Revsions fo
accounting estmates are recagnsed In the pericd in which the estimale is revised il the revision
affects only that period, or in the peried of the revision and future periods if the revision affects boti
cuirent and future pericds,

{ch Foreign currency

The Company's functional and presentation cumency is United States Dolars (USD). Fereign
currency transactions during the year are transiated into USD at the foreign exchange rates ruling af
the transaclion dates, Monetary assets and liablities denominated in foreign currencies are lranslated
into USD el the foraign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporling pedad. Exchange gains and
lesses are recognised In the profit o- loss.

Mon-menetary assels and kabilities that are measured in tarms of histerical cost n a foreign cumrency
are trarslated into USD using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Mon-
monetary assets and lisbiities denominated in forelgn curencies that are stated al fair valus are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates he fair value was determined. Foreign
cumency differences arising on retranstafion are recognised in profit or less,
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Males lo Fingnciad pigtements for e veer endod 31 Decenbar 2021(

2, Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(dy  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cach at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, Highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible inte knovmn amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in vaue, having bean within thres manths of maturity 2t 2cquisition.

(&) Other assets

Other assets are inltially recognised et far valve and thereafier slated al amorized cost less
Expected Credit Loss (ECLY) (refer 1o Mote 2g)). except whers the recehables are inferest-free
loans made to refated parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, ihe recerables are stated at cost less impairment for bad and doubtiul
debts,

[4}] Provisions and contingent llabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company has a legal
or constructive abligation arlsing as & result of a past event, it is probable that an outfiow of economic
banefits wil be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate cash be made. Whers the time
value of monrey is material, provisione are stated at the present value of the expendtve expected to
settle the obligation,

Where it is not probable that an outflow of econemic benefits will be raguired, or the amount cannct
be estimated relably, the cbligation is disclosed as a conbingent labiity, unless the probabilty of
outflow of econemiz benedits is remote. Possible cbligations, whasa existence will only be canfismad
by the ecocurrence or nen-accumence of are or more fulure events are also disclosed as confingent
iabilties un'ess the probablity of outflow of econamic benafits is remate.

(g}  Impairmant

The camying amount of the Company’s assets is reviewed at the end of each repoding perod to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. i ary such chjective evidence
exists, the assel's recowverable amount s estimated at the end of each repoding period. An
impaiment loss Is mecognised wherever the carying amount of an assel exceeds its recoversble
amount. Impa‘ment lesses are recogaised in the profil o loss.

Under IFRS 9, the impairment requirements apply primarily to firancial assets measured at amerlised
cost. The Impalment requirements are based on a forward-looking expected credt loss modal by
incorpoealing reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic condiions avallable at the
reporting date, This requires considerable judgement over how changes in economic factors affect
ECLs, which is delermined on a probabilily-weighted bas's.

(h}  Revenue recognition

Provided that It Is probable that the economic benefits will flow te the Company and the revenue and
costs, If applicablz, can be measwed reliably, senice fee income Is recognised I prefit o koss when
the investment management service is provided,

@ Expenses

All expanses are recognised in prodit and loss on an accrual basis.
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ekt Susse Mimagernant (Capman] Limited
Toies o Flarvoial shabermaols o the paar anded 2T December 2001

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a parly is considered to be related to the Company if:
{a) A person, or aclose member of that person’s famly, is related to the Carnpary If that person:
(0 has control or joint conirol over the Company;
il  has significant infuence over the Comparty; o
(i) s a member of the key management persornel of the Company or the Company's
parent.

(b}  An entity is related to the Company if any of the following canditians applies:

il  The entity and the Company are members of the same group {which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiany is related fo the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or jeint venture of the other enfity (or an assocate o joint
venture of a mermber of a group of which the olher entily is a member).

(i Beth entities are joint ventures of e sama third pary.

(Vi One entity is a joinl verture of a thind party and the cther enfity 15 an associate of the
third party.

() Tha enlity iz & post-emgployment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Company or en entity refated to the Comparny.

(¥} The erdity is controlied or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(d) A persen dentified in (a)(]) has significant Influsnce aver the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity {or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of 2 person zre those family members who may be espected to
influence, or be influenced by, thet person In thelr dealings with 1he entity.

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

The Company has applied the following amendments for the first time for theis annusl reporiing pericd
commenzing 1 January 2021:
* Covid-19 - Related Rert Concessions - amendments to IFRS 16, and

* nierest Rales Berchmark Reform - Phase 2 - amendments to IFRS €, 1AS 39 IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16.

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounis recogrised in prior periods
and are not expecied 1o significartly affect he cumant or future periads.
Changes in Accounting Policies

The 1458 has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the cument
accounting perod of the Company. MNene of these developments have had a materlal effest on how
the Compary's results and financial position for the current or priar periods have been prepared or
presented in Note 20<).

The Campary has ot applisd any new stendard or interpretation that s rot yet effective for the
cument accounting periad (Mote 15).
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Crmok! Suisne Marsgemenl (Caprnan) Limifad
Matax by Fnarcial sfatamaals o the patr saded 31 Decenber 2021

4. HMet Interest Incomea

uso 2021 2020
Net interest income

Interest income on cash and due from banks TUUNE4T T B 00E
Total interest income 1,541 16,025

All the zbove imerest income on instruments are ab amortised cost.
5. Service Fee Income

The principal aclvities of the Company are the creation of trusts and the adminsiration and
management of assels in trusts,

Revenue represents invastment management fee income eamed from fellow subsidiany as follows:

USD 2021 2020
uan‘tca fee Incame 210,000 220,000
Total revenues 210,000 220,000

6. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

UusD 2021 2020
E‘.“E'.’.!EE'.“.?'E!?'“"“ and otheroperating expenses oo
"Audilor r&fnunarahnn (6.272) (3.201)
‘Directors’ rermuneration  (108488)  (107,098)
Total general adminisirative and other aperating expenses {111,758) {111,476}

All of tha above expendiures are payable to the Compamy's immediate holding company and the
inrediate holding company setlles such expanditures on behall of the Company.

7. Taxation
There are mo taxes on Inceme or gains in the Cayman lzlands and the Compary has received an
unceraking from the Governer in Council of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income,

profits and capital taxes until 10 October 2039, Accordingly, ne provision for income taxes is inchuded
in these financial statements,
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Moles b Financhy’ stxtemands for the pear ancied 21 December 200!

8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sponsared unconsolidated structured entifies

The Company considers Hself the spensor of a siructured entily when either ils name appears In the
name of the structured ertity er In products issued by it or there is a generl expectation from the
markel that the Company ks associated with The struclured entity o the Company was invalved in {he
design or set up of ihe siruciured entity and has a form of invevement with the structured entity.

The below uncensolidated structured entties are spensored by the Company whers a fixed annual
management fes of USD 5,000 (2020: USD 5,000) is received bub ne interast & held by the
Company &5 at 31 December Z021;

‘Giobal REIT income Aipha Fund (ror Quailed instilional Investors Only) " "
ﬁuiﬁimlm Hich Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (For Qualified |F‘~5t|'|l.ﬁ]&"ﬂ| I-"rmsturs Gn'}r}

L'E H:IT Premium Fl.ml:l i (For t:'iwﬁfle::l Ins’q!ut_h_::r_sul_l_rweﬁ’rc*s Ol‘lg]l o
igh Divicend Equity Aipha Fund {Fer Qualified Ir'ﬁ‘l h.rﬂcnal Inl.'&s't{:-rs D-'Ih’]

Pﬂru:npal /G5 Cani-dan Equity Income Fund {Fﬂr Cl alfied Inslitrbonal mvestors Or

Global REIT Trighe Premium Fund [Fl:lr C!.lahﬁed Trsttutiona) Imvesiors Only)

“US High Biv Equity Premium Func (For Cualiied instivional investors Only]

UE Small CaP Eq_ular Bremium Fund {For Ouaﬂ]al:l Inshtutiunal Imesm Gn!y}

Da.l.wa Emer_sng l,.n-v,_:al I'u'lalket Bund Fl.'nd E-ﬂr Fualited inshitional Irmslgﬁ_gﬂg} R
US Freferrad REIT Inm Furd {. o OuaJ:ﬂad Instittioral Im-esturs Onily)

Japra""n Eq ﬂ}r Pr'er"_lugn Fun-d (]:r:-r_l;mgl_ﬁed Insti hrtmal tr'r-he:s‘m ﬂ*ql_-,.r} e
‘\JBJM‘MV Us REIT Ineeme Fund (For Oralited Tnstituional investars On n)

Baiva UK High Dividend Equity Furd {For Qualfied instiufonal investors Only) "™
AMP Australia |ﬁﬁ?l‘l_'lﬂ§9_f_‘\g Fund {For Oualified Enshiutlunal Im-asb?f:s_gp_y}

‘Brazi Efpd'_y Alpha Fund (Fer - Qualifisd Insﬁtuhnnal Im-asl-urs Cnly)

e T T e Py SEFEEE PR R RSN RS RS RS ES N B REEE B RS I FER RS

Dama Braziian R‘.eaﬂ Band Fund (F or Quaified insitutonal Investors G'i_:,.r}

Nissay Japan Equily Actve Fund (For Quaifod nstiutional vesiors O [ " 0T

AP Aistralie REIT Fund (For Guaified Instiutioral investors Oniy)

"JREIT and Real Estale Equity Fund (For Qualfied Instiutional Investors On

[ EERET] sEmsmEsEmrmsrmmms we =

Daiwa Aredican High Dividend Equ.l;r Cuatiro income Fund (For Quaiified Institutianal investers
Only)

Tisiwa Arercan REI Qustirs hcome Eund (For Guaified Insilalonal ivesios Orly)

‘US REIT Triple Engine Pius Fune (For ualifisd Instifutional InvestorsOy)
S Wuinicipal Band Fund

Tokdo Marine CAT Bond Fund
“Global High Dhvidend Er.;th}r F'remum Fund {For Grualif Ip_smu‘.nﬁal imsters Dnly}

SR PR amamm EEsEEmEREREEEEE

‘Meister's (E?t_lﬂﬂtlbn
"HOLT E Eu'o 5 H;,- F’ferr'lurn F,Jr'd {Fnr Ch.lal liad Enshiutlnraal Im'estﬂm ﬂn'g:l

AEamsEmmEE EEETEmTETE TR EEEETEEEEE

PIMCOD Shcrl Term Inmmg,- 51:rat-=.~g:,r Fund

T e L e

FIMCD Srori Term Strategy
Caiwa J- -E]TCcvered Call Fund {For 'Duahfed |rw5t|‘.uimnal Invaslurs 'Dnl:.-}

reugn Jenr:mlnated Man AFL Srnart Lm.rﬂraga Elralagy |_=1.1|:15|

EEEIRESNE SRR S RS A SRS

S8ilpet Asa i TechVentwreund e
N
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Unconsolidated Structured Entities (continued)

Irtsg;'_ht ﬂ#&h

LS 3¥r'1arrt ic Growth I-L.rld

Framium Cary 5t ra_'.eg‘-,r Fund

PYY Py aufda

Japane&e acr.rer-lment Bend 17-90 ‘f’esa‘ Uarider Fung [Fnr Diaiifiad nsirb,:hur‘aa JM‘EMI‘S Dri‘_ﬁ'

US Tl'aasurf 5~'F Wear ..adder Fund (For ﬂuahfeﬁ lnsh!uhwal 1rmzslars Dnjz}l

Aurrﬂla RET F'Il..s"
Austala REIT Fund

M S s S S S

Stinsel Word Wrep Gronth Typs or Oalfied iniifional rvestors Gn)”

® The funds were terminated during 2021,

R T ——

The Company has not previded financial or other support to unconsclidaled struclured entities that it

was not confractually required to provide.

The Compary does not cumertly have the intenton to provide finandal or olher suppor to
uncanselidated structured entittes that it is not cortractually required to provide.

Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash equivalents comprize:

uso 2021 2020

Cash and due from banks

Cash ard due from banks 1,755,668 1,643,796

Total cash and due from banks 1,759,688 1,643,796
Other Assets and Other Liabilities

Usp 2021 2020

Other assets

interest and faes recehable 210,862 090,970

Tatal other assets 210,863 220,970

usp 2029 2020

Other liabilities ~

Interest and fees payable 223,831 T17,833

Total other liabilities 223,921 217,933

12
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Crwcht Seisse Managoraon! (Capman] L inied
Mebes b Fnancin sfirtamands for e pear snded 37 Decemder 2021
11. Share Capital
(a}  Authorised and issued share capital

?

2021 2020
No. of uso No. of uso
shares shares
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of LSD 1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid up: B
Crdnary shares 73,000 733,000 735,000 735,000

The halders of ordinary shares are srtifled to recelve dividends as deciared from time to time and are
entitied to one vole per share at general meetings of the Company. Al ordinary shares rank equally
with regard lo tha Comparny's residual assets,

(b)Y Capital management

The Company's primary cbiectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's abilty to
continue as a going concem o that it can continue to provide refums to sharehaolders, by pricing
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost, As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company’s scurces of additional capital and
poiicies for distribution of excess capital may also be affected by the group's capiial management
ohiactves. Tha Company defines "capital” as including all components of equity.

The Company's <apital structure |s regularly reviewsd and managed wilh dua regard to the capital
management practices of the group fo which the Company belongs. Acjustmerts are made 1o the
capital structure in light of changes in economic cenditions affecting the Company or the group, to
the extent that these do nof conflict with the drectors’ fiduclary dities towards the Company.

The Company was rot subject 1o externally imposed capital recuirements in the current period,

12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign cumency risks arses in the normal course of the
Cempary's business. These risks are managed by the Company’s financial management policies and
practices described below.

{@  Credt sk

The Compary’s credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts dus frem greup companies and cash at
bank. Credit dsk is defined as risk that cne party to a financial instrurnent will cause a financiel loss to
another party by faiing o discharge an obligation. Management regufarly montions its fsk exposure to
gnsure that its credit risk is kept to a minimal leval. The maxdmum exposure to credt rsk ks
represerad by the carrying amsunt of each financial asset in the statement of financial positon afier
deducting any impairnent allowance,

13
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Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)
Liquicity risk:

The Company's policy is to regularly moniter s lguidity requirements to satisfy fs contractual and
reasonably foreseeable obligations as they fall due.,

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, all of the Compary's firancial babilities, which ircledes all crediters
and accruais, are on demand or undated and are expecied lo be sellied batwess thres 4o twebe
minths.

Interest rate risk

The Comparty is exposed to inferest rate risk only to the extent that it eamns bark inferest on cash
and ceposits, At 31 December 2021 and 2000, 2 change in Interest rates would have no divect
material effect on the camying value of fhe recognised assets or babilties of the Company,

Foresgn curmency risk

The Company Is expssed %o ferelgn curency risk primarily through cedain transaclions which give rise
ta payables that are derominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD".

As the HKD is pegged to the IUSD, the Company considers thet the risk of mavemants in exchange
rates between USD and HKD to be insignificant.

Fair values

The camying amounis of the Company's financial instruments camied at cost or amortised cost are
not materislly different from their falr valve as at 31 December 2021 and 2020,

Material Related Party Transactions

In agdition to the transactions and balances disclosed alsewhera in the financal statemanis, the
Company entered inta the {olowing material relaied party transactions,

Related party balance sheet transactions

31 December 2021 31 December 2020°

Parant Fellaw Tatal Parant Fellow Taotal
Group Group

usD Companies Companies
Assats
Other assads — 210,653 210,863 — L0863 200,863
Total assats - 210863 210,863 - 220,863 220,883
Liabilities and
Equity
Ctherlabiiies =~ 28&81 =~ o...223\8 9wess L LmL..2ess
Share capital TE5,000 - 736,000 735,000 - T25,000
Total liabilities and
shareholders’
equity 958,931 = 858,931 962,933 - 952,933

‘Certain companalens figunes bave een neclaas® od w0 confam 1o the Cument year's presenladon.
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13. Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

{b) Related party revenues and expenses

2021 = 2020
Parent Fellow Total Parent Fallow Total
Group Group
usD Companies Companies
Revenues
Service feeiocome - 210000 210000 = 22000C 220000
Total revenues — 210,000 210,000 - 220,000 220,000

{c) Remuneration of key management personnel

Remuneration of key management personnel (LISD) 021 2020
Shor-term employes banafits 106,485 107,083
Tatal Remuneration of key managsment parsonnal 106,485 107,093

14. Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 Decamber 2021, the immediate parent of the Company & Credit Suisse (Hong Hong) Limited,
which is incorporaied in Heng Keng and the ultimate controliing perly of the Compary is Credi
Suisse Group AG, which I3 noorporated in Switzerand. Credit Suisse Group AS produces financial
slatemeants avallable for public use.

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but
nat yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2021

Certain new scoourting standands, amendments 1o accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2021 reporing pericde and have not been
early adopted by the Compary, These standands, amendments or interpretations are not expecied to
nave & materdal impact on the entty in the current or fulure reporting periods and on foresesable
future transactions.

16. Subsequent Events
There have been no matters of circumslances that have zrisen since the end of the financial period,
which significantly affected, or may significantly affect, ihe operations of the Company, the resulis of
those operations, or the state of affairs of the Compzny in future financlal years.

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

The financial staternents were approved for issue by the board of directors of the Company on 10
Jure 2022,

15
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Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of U.S. Municipal Bond Fund (the "Series Trust'™), a series trust
of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
November 30, 2022, the statement of comprehensive income, changes in equity.and cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, inall material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as at November 30, 2022, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("1FRS™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("'I1SAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditors® Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in
accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (*'IESBA Code') together
wi'th the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series
Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust®s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee (continued)
Auditors* Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the.circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Series Trust"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. Ifwe
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors” report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors"
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events ina
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

May 4, 2023
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Independent auditor’s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the” Company”), which are set out on pages 3 to 15,
comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,

the statement of income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December
2021, and of itsfinancia performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“1FRSS’).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAS"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethicsfor Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“|ESBA
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financia statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no redlistic aternative but to do so.
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Independent auditor’s report to the board of directors of

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as abody, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAswill always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with | SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriatein
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and rel ated
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether amaterial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 10 June 2022
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